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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 15 JANUARY 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Se leka,  good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we ready?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We are  ready Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i rperson today is  the  hear ing  o f  o r  

the  lead ing  o f  tes t imony o f  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe .   Mr  Mole fe  i s  

lega l l y  represented.   I  wou ld  a l low the  lega l  10 

rep resenta t i ves  to  p lace  themse lves on  record .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes they may do tha t  e i ther  f rom where  

they are  seated i f  they  pu t  on  the  – i f  –  ja  there  is  no  they  

can go to  the  pod ium.   Somebody must  jus t  san i t i se  be fore  

they go  there .  

ADV MASUKU:  Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  together  w i th  Mr  

Tsheppe and Mr  S ikhakhane on the  ins t ruc t ions o f  Mr  –  o f  

Mo le fe  A t to rneys.   We appear  fo r  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you very  much Mr  Masuku.   

Yes Mr  Se leka.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.   Cha i rperson 

Mr  Mole fe  i s  here  I  env isage tha t  he  is  ready to  take  the  

oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Good morn ing  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR MOLEFE:   Good morn ing  Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   P lease admin i s te r  t he  oa th  

or  a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR MOLEFE:   B r ian  Mole fe .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any ob jec t ions to  tak ing  the  

proscr ibed a f f i rmat ion?  

MR MOLEFE:   No  ob jec t ions.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  a f f i rm tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g ive  w i l l  be  the  t ru th .  

MR MOLEFE:   I  w i l l .  10 

REGISTRAR:   The who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e l se  bu t  the  

t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say,  I  t ru ly  

a f f i rm.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you;  you may be seated.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i rperson the  bund le  we w i l l  be  us ing  

is  Exh ib i t  Eskom Bund le  17  –  17  Exh ib i t  U38.   Exh ib i t  U38 

tha t  i s  where  you f ind  Mr  Mole fe ’s  a f f idav i t  together  w i th  20 

the  annexures.   Mr  Mole fe  I  w i l l  ask  you to  go  there  as  

we l l .   Oh my learned f r iend Mr  Masuku seeks to  pu t  cer ta in  

th ings on  record  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you –  I  was expect ing  you to  f i rs t  

ind ica te  fo r  the  benef i t  fo r  the  pub l i c  where  Mr  –  what  Mr  
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Mo le fe  w i l l  be  tes t i f y ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About  –  he  w i l l  be  quest ioned about  and 

so  tha t  the  pub l i c  w i l l  fo l low.   Maybe you shou ld  do  tha t  

and then once you are  done w i th  tha t  Mr  Masuku can  

address me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Yes Mr  Mole fe  I  

shou ld  say a t  the  ou tse t  tha t  h is  names fea tures  in  many 

th ings.   A coup le  o f  i ssues f rom Transnet  to  Eskom and to  

Par l iament  bu t  h is  ca l led  by  the  Eskom work  s t ream 10 

Cha i rperson to  focus on  mat te rs  tha t  per ta in  Eskom.  

 And tha t  dea ls  w i th  Mr  Mole fe ’s  secondment  –  how  

he was seconded  to  Tran –  to  Eskom f rom Transnet .   Dea ls  

w i th  Mr  Mole fe ’s  dec i s ion  mak ing  in  regard  to  what  he  

found to  be  the  coopera t ion  ag reement  and the  four th  

addendum between Eskom and Opt imum.   How he dea l t  

w i th  tha t .   He w i l l  exp la in  in  regard  to  the  dec is ions he  

made.  

 And to  the  ex ten t  tha t  he  can and I  know tha t  he  

was not  pe rsona l ly  invo lved in  cer ta in  dec is ions regard ing  20 

the  two p re -payments  dec is ions.   The R1.68  b i l l i on 

dec is ion  tha t  was  made by  the  board  and the  R659  mi l l ion 

pre -payment  dec i s ion  made by  the  board .  

 He can exp la in  to  the  ex ten t  he  can and he w i l l  a lso  

dea l  w i th  the  pena l t ies  tha t  were  – tha t  Eskom sought  to  
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impose aga ins t  OCM and how tha t  mat te r  u l t imate ly  go t  

reso lved.  

 Together  w i th  tha t  Cha i rperson i s  the  in te rac t ion  

be tween Eskom and the  DMR on the  one hand  and in  

par t i cu la r  the  approach Mr  Mole fe  and Dr  Ngubane  makes  

to  Mr  Ramat lhod i  in  regard  to  tha t .  

 Mr  Mole fe  has ind ica ted  to  me tha t  he  wou ld  l i ke  to  

t raverse  o ther  i ssues par t i cu la r ly  in  regard  to  the  PP –  the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec to rs  Repor t  bu t  he  w i l l  do  so  in  due course .  

 Cha i rperson there  are  o ther  mat te rs  tha t  m ight  c rop  10 

up dur ing  the  –  the  lead ing  o f  h is  ev idence and i f  Mr  

Mole fe  i s  no t  ready on those we have ind i ca ted  or  agreed 

w i th  h im tha t  he  wou ld  ask  fo r  you r  permiss ion  to  e i ther  f i l e  

an  a f f idav i t  seek fo r  more  t ime in  o rder  to  dea l  w i th  those  

mat te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  one –  the  one mat te r  wh ich  you –  

shou ld  be  ment ioned is  tha t  he  w i l l  come back a t  some 

s tage to  dea l  w i th  mat te rs  re la t ing  to  Transnet .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  genera l l y  speak ing  today he w i l l  no t  20 

be  dea l ing  w i th  Transnet  mat te rs .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  cor rec t  I  have conveyed tha t  

much a lso  to  Mr  Mole fe  and the  lega l  team.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay a l r igh t .   Then Masuku can  

address me i f  he  w ishes to  address me.  

ADV MASUKU:   Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  thank you fo r  

a l low ing me to  ra ise  these p re l im inary  i ssues.   They are  

ra ised not  to  c rea te  the  impress ion  tha t  someth ing  i s  

wrong.  

 But  in  a  process  l i ke  th is  these issues ought  to  be  

ra ised so  tha t  the  process is  then  reached and i t  is  –  i t  i s  10 

made a  l i t t le  s t ronger.  

 I  have been asked to  ra ise  –  I  have been asked and  

have a  du ty  to  ra ise  those issues wh ich  concern  – wh ich  

concern  the  appearance o f  the  Mr  Br ian .  

 The f i rs t  i s  tha t  Eskom has a  –  has f i led  a  c iv i l  

c la im to  the  amount  o f  I  th ink  o f  R3  b i l l i on  aga ins t  Mr  Br ian  

and I  th ink  e leven o ther  de fendants  on  the  ve ry  i ssues tha t  

w i l l  be  canvassed  by  the  commiss ion  today.  

 So to  the  ex ten t  tha t  some o f  the  issues –  some o f  

the  quest ions may undermine h i s  de fence in  the  c i v i l  c la im  20 

we might  ra i se  an  ob jec t ion .   We hope i t  does not  have to  

come to  tha t  –  to  tha t  leve l  bu t  he  wou ld  be  ent i t led  to  

ra ise  a  de fence on the  bas is  tha t  th is  wou ld  –  i t  i s  no t  –  i t  

i s  –  i t  wou ld  be  unfa i r  in  l igh t  o f  the  –  in  l igh t  o f  the 

pend ing  l i t iga t ion  tha t  i s  go ing  on  on the  very  same issues 
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tha t  he  is  canvass ing .  

 The second one you w i l l  be  aware  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  tha t  

the  Pres ident  has made a  p roc lamat ion  I  th ink  i t  was 2019 

i f  I  am not  wrong in  respect  o f  wh ich  a  fu l l  sca le  

invest iga t ion  was  –  or  was ordered by  the  Pres ident  the  

S IU must  conduct  in  re la t ion  to  the  Eskom mat te rs .  

 And we –  Mr  Mo le fe  in fo rms us  tha t  he  has been  

in fo rmed tha t  there  are  peop le  who worked w i th  h im have 

been asked fo r  a f f idav i t s  in  re la t ion  to  tha t  inves t iga t ion  

and a t  some po in t  the  S IU or  whoever  i s  invest iga t ing  th is  10 

issue w i l l  con f ron t  Mr  Mole fe  on  the  –  on  those aspects .  

 We wou ld  ask  tha t  where  i t  i s  poss ib le  h is  r igh t  to  –  

h is  r igh t  to  no t  incr im inate  h imse l f  be  respected  i f  i t  i s  

ra ised leg i t imate l y  and we hope we do ra i se  i t  leg i t imate ly.  

 And then the  las t  i ssue rea l l y  i s  an  issue o f  –  you  

know i f  –  hav ing  been here  a  number  t imes Ch ie f  Jus t ice  i f  

I  do  no t  compla in  i t  i s  jus t  no t  r igh t .   So I  am go ing  to  

compla in  about… 

CHAIRPERSON:   So  you a re  go ing  to  compla in?  

ADV MASUKU:   Yes.   I  am go ing  to  compla in  about  t he  fac t  20 

tha t  we d id  rece ive  the  documents  on  wh ich  Mr  Mole fe  had 

to  p repare  fo r  th i s  hear ing  qu i te  la te  –  i t  was on Tuesday –  

Tuesday n igh t .  

 We as l ega l  rep resenta t i ves  were  ab le  to  access  

those documents  the  fo l low ing day wh ich  was a  Wednesday  
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and we on ly  rea l l y  had Wednesday and Thursday and par t  

o f  –  we l l  today is  Fr iday to  go  th rough the  documents  tha t  

had been sent  to  i t .  

 I t  does c rea te  a  prob lem for  Mr  Mole fe  because one 

o f  the  quest ions  we had asked  qu i te  ear ly  was wh ich  

aspect  –  in  wh ich  –  in  respect  o f  wh ich  pos i t ion  was the  

commiss ion  seek ing  to  have Mr  Mo le fe  come and tes t i f y?    

 Because the  –  the  I  th ink  i t  i s  the  Regu la t ion  10 .3  

Not ice  does not  rea l l y  po in t  ou t  tha t  he  is  fac t  tes t i f y ing  on 

the  Eskom issues and tha t  i ssue became c learer  when we  10 

rece ived the  le t te r  tha t  I  commended and the  le t te r  by  Mr  

Se leka wh ich  was a  very  po l i te  and very  f ru i t fu l  le t te r  to  

engage w i th .  

 So we do want  to  say tha t  there  is  invar iab l y  

p re jud ice  tha t  re la tes  to  the  de ta i l  tha t  he  may requ i re  f rom 

Mr  Mole fe  in  respect  o f  the  issues tha t  he  go t  documents  

la te  on .  

 So in  tha t  respec t  we wou ld  ask  tha t  i f  he  does say  

tha t  he  has no t  engaged w i th  cer ta in  aspects  o f  your  

quest ion  tha t  you a l low h im the  oppor tun i ty  to  do  so  in  20 

wr i t ing  a f te r  hav ing  go t ten  enough  t ime w i th  h is  lawyers  to  

engage w i th  those quest ions tha t  you wou ld  be  w ish ing  h im  

to  engage w i th .  

 So because I  mean  sub jec t  to  any quest ions tha t  

you may to  jus t  ass i s t  those are  the  remarks  tha t  I  thought  
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a re  impor tan t  to  record  so  tha t  we unders tand the  contex t  

in  wh ich  Mr  Mole fe  i s  go ing  to  be  g iv ing  h i s  ev idence.  

 I t  i s  the  contex t  o f  a  c iv i l  and cr im ina l  l iab i l i t y  tha t  

he  is  fac ing  and  the  contex t  in  wh ich  the  documents  had  

been sent  to  h im by the  commiss ion  and the  l im i ted  t ime 

tha t  he  had to  p repare  fo r  those documents .  

 Abso lu te ly  the  f ina l  one Ch ie f  Jus t ice  he  does want  

to  have th is  –  he  has a  s ta tement  tha t  he  wants  to  make in  

wh ich  he  –  i t  may  c la r i f y  h i s  m ind about  the  th ings tha t  the  

commiss ion  is  invest iga t ing .   I f  i t  i s  permi t ted  Mr  Br ian  is  10 

ready to  g i ve  tha t  s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No thank you Mr  Masuku.   I  th ink  to  the 

ex ten t  tha t  he  may have rece ived  cer ta in  documents  la te  

and there fore  has no t  had an adequate  oppor tun i ty  to  

p repare  h imse l f  on  cer ta in  documents  o r  i ssues there  w i l l  

be  no  d i f f i cu l t y  where  he  is  no t  ab le  to  answer  because he  

needs more  t ime to  look  a t  those documents .    

There  w i l l  be  no  d i f f i cu l t y  in  a r rang ing  tha t  he  can 

dea l  w i th  those a t  some o the r  t ime or  he  m ight  f i l e  an 

a f f idav i t  and then he might  be  asked quest ions when he  20 

comes back as  I  ind ica te  he  mus t  s t i l l  come back  to  dea l  

w i th  non-Eskom mat te rs .  

 So there  w i l l  be  no  d i f f i cu l t y.   Every  e f fo r t  i s  made  

to  make sure  tha t  there  is  fa i rness.   We might  no t  a lways  

succeed but  we w i l l  keep on t ry ing  to  make su re .  
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 So  there  w i l l  no  –  no  d i f f i cu l t y  in  regard  to  

documents  tha t  he  rea l l y  has no t  had enough t ime  to  look  

a t  because the  commiss ion  gave h im those la te .  

 Wi th  regard  to  the  quest ion  o f  c r im ina l  mat te rs  and 

the  fac t  tha t  he  may in  regard  to  some quest ion  w ish  to  no t  

to  g ive  an  answer  in  o rder  no t  to  incr im inate  h imse l f  tha t  i f  

and when tha t  i s  ra ised we w i l l  a l l  dea l  w i th  i t  then.  

 Whethe r  o r  no t  anyth ing  tha t  may fa l l  under  the  c iv i l  

ac t ion  bu t  no t  under  the  pr iv i l ege not  to  incr im inate  

yourse l f  whether  o r  no t  tha t  cou ld  be  a  ground  not  to  10 

answer  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  i f  and when i t  a r i ses .   I t  m igh t  

no t  a r ise .  

 So –  so  –  bu t  tha t  i s  f ine .   Le t  us  see how i t  goes  

and –  and where  there  are  cha l lenges or  concerns  we w i l l  

dea l  w i th  them.  

ADV MASUKU:   Thank you Deputy  Just ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   I  w i l l  a l low Mr  Mo le fe  the  

oppor tun i ty  to  read or  make some remarks  o r  s ta tements  

be fore  he  g ives ev idence.   As  I  unders tand f rom you Mr  

Masuku tha t  he  wou ld  l i ke  tha t  oppor tun i ty.   Mr  Mole fe  I  20 

have ind ica ted  to  your  counse l  tha t  a l though I  have 

a l lowed o ther  w i tnesses to  –  tha t  oppor tun i ty  f rom a  

cer ta in  t ime I  have been concerned whether  we  shou ld  

ins is t  tha t  we shou ld  rece ive  a  wr i t ten  s ta tement  in  

advance so  tha t  we cou ld  see whether  i t  w i l l  imp l ica te  any 
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th i rd  par t ies  or  any o the r  peop le  in  wrongdo ings so  tha t  the 

re levant  p rocedura l  i ssues can be a t tended to .  

 But  my unders tand ing  f rom your  counse l  i s  tha t  you r  

s ta tement  shou ld  no t  have anyth ing  l i ke  tha t .   So a f te r  Mr  

–  be fore  Mr  Se leka s ta r t s  lead ing  your  ev idence I  w i l l  a l low 

you the  oppor tun i ty  to  e i ther  read  the  s ta tement  o r  make  

the  remarks  tha t  you –  tha t  you w ish  to  make.   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Shou ld  I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you ready to  s ta r t  o r  do  you s t i l l  have 

some housekeep ing  issues to  a t tend to?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No I  am ready to  s ta r t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  cou ld  ident i f y  the  f i le  and … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  th ink  le t  us  –  le t  us  a l l ow Mr  

Mole fe  to  make h is  remarks  or  read h is  s ta tement  and then 

a f te r  tha t  we –  we –  you can then take  i t  f rom there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Mr  Mole fe .  

MR MOLEFE:   Thank you Cha i rperson.   Le t  me s tar t  by  

express ing  my g ra t i tude fo r  a l low ing me to  c rave your  20 

indu lgence in  mak ing  the  s ta tement .  

 Cha i rperson dur ing  the  tes t imony o f  Dr  Ben  

Ngubane you asked a  per t inent  quest ion  wh ich  in  my  

op in ion  i f  answered w i l l  pu t  in to  contex t  and c la r i f y  the 

events  tha t  took p lace a t  Eskom dur ing  my tenure  there  in  
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2015 and 2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes jus t  hang on Mr  Mole fe .   I  th ink  you 

might  w ish  to  b r i ng  the  m icrophone a  l i t t le  c lose r  to  you so  

tha t  you a re  l oud enough and you can keep your  

m icrophone on th roughout .   I t  w i l l  –  you do not  have to  

swi tch  i t  o f f  when non-speak ing  or  when he is  speak ing .   

You can jus t  keep  i t  on  a l l  the  t ime.  Yes you can cont inue.  

 I  jus t  want  everyone to  hear  what  you say proper ly  

–  your  vo ice  must  be  a t  i t  loudest .  

MR MOLEFE:   I  do  no t  want  to  ta lk  in to  i t  and g ive  the  10 

who le  Cov id .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Cha i rperson du r ing  tha t  tes t imony you  

re fer red  to  a  quest ion  tha t  needs to  be  pu t  to  Opt imum 

Coa l  Mine a long the  l ines  o f  and I  quote  what  you sa id :  

“How d id  you a l low whoever  s igned on your  

beha l f  to  s ign  a  cont rac t  tha t  the  pr i ce  

wou ld  be  the  same fo r  ten  years  or  more?   

Were  they s leep ing  or  what  o r  what  was –  

how cou ld  you have s igned such a  cont rac t?   20 

Nobody s igns such a  cont rac t . ”  

 Those were  your  words Cha i rperson.   And  

unfor tunate l y  Cha i rperson these quest ions were  no t  pu t  to  

OCM.   Because I  th ink  a l though i t  was du r ing  Dr  Ngubane ’s  

ev idence you were  ask ing  about  OCM’s  lack  o f  –  o r  ra the r  



15 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 329 
 

Page 14 of 102 
 

–  the  reason beh ind  what  they d id .  

 But  the  answers  to  these quest ions are  a t  the  hear t  

o f  how and why  we f ind  ourse lves where  we a re  today.   

Why they were  no t  asked?  Nor  had they bare l y  answered  

these quest ions G lencore  d id  shed some l igh t  as  to  how 

they had put  themse lves in  tha t  p recar ious s i tua t ion  ou t  o f  

wh ich  they were  demand ing to  be  rescued by  Eskom.  

 G lencore  d id  no t  s ign  the  cont rac t  tha t  you re fer red  

to .   G lencore  bought  the  cont rac t  w i th  the  company tha t  

had s igned the  cont rac t .   Th is  i s  in  the  ev idence o f  Mr  10 

Ephron befo re  th is  commiss ion  and i t  was on the  13  

January  –  sor ry  i t  was –  ja  i t  was  on the  13  January  2020  

tha t  he  have th is  ev idence.  

 That  they had bought  a  company together  w i th  the  

SCA -   CSA –  Ca l l  Supp ly  Agreement .   A l though Mr  Ephron  

is  a  Char te red Accountant  he  admi t ted  tha t  G lencore  d id  

no t  conduct  a  due d i l igence on Opt imum pr io r  to  the  

acqu is i t ion  o f  the  company and the  cont rac t .  

 Nor  had they bo thered to  acqua in t  themse lves w i th  

how the  Coa l  Supp ly  Agreement  worked.   Th is  was in  page 20 

3  o f  the  s ta tement  sor ry  in  parag raph –  in  page 3  o f  h is  

s ta tement .    

 Ins tead o f  conduct ing  due  d i l igence and 

unders tand ing  how the  Coa l  Supp ly  Agreement  worked they  

d id  someth ing  ex t rao rd inary  Cha i rperson.   They so ld  9 .64% 



15 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 329 
 

Page 15 of 102 
 

o f  the  shares i n  the  new acqu i red  company to  Mr  Cyr i l  

Ramaphosa.   A po l i t i ca l  heavyweight  and made h im 

cha i rman o f  the  newly  acqu i red  company.  

 That  was a  s t ra teg ic  dec is ion  to  use the  fo rmer  

Secre tary  Genera l  o f  the  A f r i can  Nat iona l  Congress and  

fo rmer  Secre ta ry  Genera l  o f  the  Nat iona l  Un ion  o f  Mine  

Workers .   A member  o f  the  Nat iona l  Execut ive  Commi t tee  

o f  the  ANC at  the  t ime.  

 They knew tha t  the  pro f i tab i l i t y  o f  the  company  

cou ld  on l y  come f rom a  success fu l  renegot ia t ion  o f  the  10 

coa l  p r ice  and ignor ing  by  Eskom of  the  pena l t ies  tha t  were  

accumula t ing  a t  the  t ime.  

 Mr  Ramaphosa was the i r  be t .   The pro f i tab i l i t y  o f  

Opt imum was there fo re  dependent  on  the  peda l l ing  o f  

po l i t i ca l  in f luence .   And the  ex ten t  to  wh ich  G lencore  wou ld  

be  ab le  to  exer t  p ressure  on  Eskom d i rec to rs  and 

management  and  not  on  the  fundamenta ls  o f  the  company 

tha t  they had acqu i red .  

 Th is  in  my op in ion  was the  source  o f  G lencore ’s  

p rob lems.   They had made the i r  bed and needed to  l ie  on  20 

i t .   I t  was unfa i r  and ar rogant  o f  them to  demand as  they  

were  do ing  tha t  Eskom shou ld  e f fec t i ve ly  pay  fo r  the  

i r respons ib le  manner  in  wh ich  they had t ied  themse lves 

in to  the  prove rb ia l  knot .  

 You observed Cha i rperson tha t  on  my a r r i va l  a t  
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Eskom the re  was and I  quote  you:  

“A comple te  change o f  a t t i tude on the  par t  

o f  Eskom on the  dea l  tha t  had been  

proposed and had been suppor ted  by  

var ious leve ls  o f  management . ”  

 You were  re fer r ing  to  the  dea l  tha t  had been  

entered in to  by  Eskom management  and Glencore  to  save 

Glencore ’s  sk in  f rom the  consequences o f  purchas ing  a  

company hav ing  no t  conducted due d i l igence.  

 Eskom management  and Glencore  were  in  t he  10 

process o f  sub-ve t t ing  Sect ion  38  o f  the  PFMA.   Sect ion  38  

1C I  wh ich  ta lks  about  the  du ty  o f  a  s ta te  owned en t i t y  o r  a  

s ta te  body to  co l lec t  what  i s  owed to  i t .  

 On the  8  December  2020 dur ing  the  course  o f  these  

hear ings the  ev idence leader  Advocate  Se leka was a t  pa ins  

to  exp la in  how G lencore  had fa l len  in to  ha rdsh ip  because 

the  expor t  p r ice  o f  coa l  had taken a  nosed ive .  

 Dr  Ngubane t r ied  to  exp la in  to  the  commiss ion  tha t  

when the  in te rna t iona l  coa l  p r ice  was h igh  and Opt imum 

en joyed super  p ro f i t s  they had no t  shared the i r  spo i l s  w i th  20 

Eskom.  

 What  was unfor tunate ly  los t  in  that  exchange is  the  

fac t  tha t  Opt imum was a  cost  p lus  m ine.   I t  had been bu i l t  

w i th  Eskom’s  cap i ta l  and had  been g iven a  40  year  

cont rac t .   Eskom had respons ib i l i t y  fo r  the  m in ing  costs  
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and in  re tu rn  Opt imum rece ived a  s ix  marg in .   Eskom was 

and I  th ink  a t  some po in t  du r ing  the  hear ings you re fer red  

to  th is  as  an  absurd  ar rangement .   Eskom was unfa i r l y  

exc luded in  par t i c ipa t ing  in  the  super  p ro f i t s  o f  the  t ime 

when t imes were  good and ye t  i t  was expected to  fo rk  ou t  

more  cap i ta l .   Fo rego i t s  leg i t imate  pr ice  expecta t ions and  

subs id ise  r i ch  in te rnat iona l  co rpo ra t ions when the  t imes 

were  bad.  

 That  i s  the  s i tua t ion  tha t  we f ind  ourse l ves in .   You  

cor rec t l y  po in ted  out  Cha i rpe rson tha t  Eskom had a  10 

leg i t imate  cont rac t  w i th  Opt imum.   In  te rms o f  tha t  cont rac t  

we a t  Eskom were  supposed to  ge t  f rom them coa l  a t  the  

pr ice  o f  R150.00 per  ton  un t i l  2018.   Those were  the  te rms 

o f  the  cont rac t .     

 Whethe r  they l i ked  i t  whether  they d id  no t  l i ke  i t  

those were  the  te rms o f  the  cont rac t .   In  add i t ion  they had  

accumula ted  pena l t ies  in  te rms o f  tha t  cont rac t  to  the  

va lue  o f  R2 b i l l i on .    

 Ev idence was led  in  th is  commiss ion  tha t  tha t  R2 

b i l l i on  was not  a  f igment  o f  the  –  o f  my imag ina t ion .   That  20 

R2 b i l l i on  was ca lcu la ted  a t  –  accumula ted  f rom 2012.   I  

th ink  i t  was Mr  Bester  who sa id  tha t  he  ac tua l l y  had 

ca l cu la ted  the  R2 b i l l i on  and dur ing  h is  hear ing  on  tha t  

mat te r  there  was  debate  about  whether  o r  no t  i t  shou ld  

have been a  m i l l i on  more  or  a  m i l l i on  less  bu t  i t  was about  
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R2 b i l l i on .  

 Opt imum demanded tha t  the  p r ice  o f  coa l  be  

increased to  R530.00 per  ton  and  tha t  the  pena l t ies  o f  R2 

b i l l i on  shou ld  be  wr i t ten  o f f .   Somebody ment ioned 530 the  

o ther  day and Advocate  Se leka jumped and sa id  i t  was not  

530 i t  was 400 and someth ing .  Bu t  Advocate  Se leka when  

they came to  me fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime the  f igure  was  530.   I t  

may o r  may not  have been wr i t ten  bu t  tha t  i s  what  I  c lear l y  

reca l l  and they la te r  on  reduced i t  to  what  you re fer  to .   

But  the  or ig ina l  demand a t  leas t  to  me i t  was R530.00 per  10 

ton  f rom R150.00 .  

 I t  was the  open ing  negot ia t ing  pos i t ion .   R530.00  

f rom R150.00.   An increase f rom R150.00 to  R530 .00 per  

ton  wou ld  have meant  a  t ransfer  o f  R6 b i l l i on  f rom Eskom 

to  G lencore  over  a  per iod  o f  th ree  years .   2015 to  2018.  

 Add to  th is  the  R2 b i l l i on  wr i te  o f f  o f  the  pena l t ies  

tha t  they were  ask ing  fo r.   The amount  tha t  G lencore  

wanted Eskom to  pay fo r  the i r  o r ig ina l  m is take o f  no t  do ing  

due d i l igence was R8 b i l l i on .  

 R8 b i l l i on  Cha i rperson.   The observa t ion  tha t  the re  20 

was a  comple te  change o f  a t t i tude on the  par t  o f  Eskom on  

the  dea l  tha t  had  been proposed and had been suppor ted  

by  var ious leve l s  o f  management  when I  a r r i ved a t  Eskom 

is  abso lu te l y  cor rec t .  

 I  am not  ashamed o f  th is  change o f  a t t i tude tha t  
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occu r red .   When  I  a r r i ved I  was hav ing  Eskom’s  i n te res t  

and those o f  the  count ry  a t  hear t .   What  was happen ing  

was wrong on many f ron ts .   I t  was l i te ra l l y  go ing  to  

f inanc ia l l y  ru in  Eskom.  

 But  there  was an added issue to  th is .   The Glencore  

pos i t ion  wou ld  have seen an inequ i tab le  s i tua t ion .   The 

poor  and most  vu lne rab le  in  the  count ry  wou ld  subs id i se  

the  dea l ings o f  the  r i ch .   There  was no way tha t  I  cou ld  

w i th  a  c lean consc ience a t tend pub l i c  ga the r ings and  

meet ings and shout  un t i l  I  am hoarse  tha t  Soweto residents 10 

needed to pay their  debt  to Eskom, when I  was al lowing 

internat ional  corporates to d isadvantage Eskom on many 

f ronts,  not  over.   I  could not  face Eskom employees and 

unions and tel l  them that  thei r  bonuses wi l l  not  be paid or  

that  their  salary increases wi l l  be zero.   The bonuses wi l l  not  

be paid as was many the case in 2015.    

 And that  we had no funds to f ix the apartheid wage gap 

that  st i l l  exists between black and whi te employees of  

Eskom.  There is  st i l l  an apartheid wage gap at  Eskom, whi le 

r ich internat ional  corporat ions were duly -  unduly exploi t ing 20 

Eskom.   

 As I  have stated the payments to Glencore would have 

sunk Eskom.  You wi l l  recal l  Chairperson that  th is was at  the 

t ime when load-shedding was becoming the norm.   

 I  could not  Chai rperson say to South Af r icans that  load-
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shedding wi l l  cont inue because we do not  have enough 

money to conduct  planned backlog maintenance on our  

electr ic i ty  generat ing f leet .   I  am st i l l  a l lowed eight  bi l l ion to 

be unjust ly t ransferred to Glencore.    

 When I  arr ived at  Eskom, a de facto  board of  the 

company had been establ ished outs ide of  the company in the 

form of  a  War Room in the Presidency.   Management had to 

report  to th is War Room.   

 Ms Matsietsi  Mokholo was here yesterday and she 

explained Chai rperson,  to you,  how the War Room demanded 10 

meet ings wi th management and off ic ia ls of  the Department of  

Publ ic Enterpr ises,  every Fr iday at  seven a.m.  Every Fr iday,  

they had to present  reports.    

 So when I  got  there -  the biggest  act iv i ty that  was 

happening at  Eskom was prepar ing War Room reports f rom 

Wednesday,  you must  start  preparing the reports,  make sure 

that  they are ready for Fr iday seven a.m.  Then i t  is 

weekend.  Then Monday,  Tuesday we work.   Then 

Wednesday we start  preparing reports again.   I t  was an 

unat tainable s i tuat ion.    20 

 There was a board,  de facto  board that  was outside of  

the company.   And what is  even more strange Chairperson is 

that  there has been evidence here including by Ms Mokholo 

who was here yesterday that  members of  the board,  a  

legi t imate board,  a legal  board of  Eskom had not  seen – 
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were not  seeing those War Room reports.   So management 

was report ing to the War Room.   

 But  i t  gets even bet ter Chai rperson.   The Deputy 

President  of  the Republ ic,  Mr Cyri l  Ramaphosa was the 

Chairperson of  the War Room.  He was in fact  a de facto  

chairperson of  Eskom.   

 A de facto  chai rperson of  a de facto  board that  was 

outside the company.   He was the de facto  chai rperson and 

had started playing this role di rect ly f rom begin chai rperson 

of  Opt imum.   10 

 When the deal  was done in 2012 and he was sold shares 

or he bought shares,  he was made chairperson.   In 2014,  he 

became Deputy President  and Chai rperson of  the War Room.   

 One would have expected – corporate governance 

requi res that  there was be a cool ing-off  per iod precisely for  

th ings l ike this.   Here is a person who was engaged in  

saying we must renegot iate.   That  cont ract  was signed in 

2014,  the contract  that  I  found at  Eskom.  We must  

renegot iate.    

 Effect ively R 8 bi l l ion moves and becomes the de facto 20 

chairperson of  the company.   In fact ,  he sold his shares to  

Tembani.   I  am not  sure i f  that  was arms l ink(?) but  he sold 

his shares to Tembani.    

 But  at  the t ime when I  got  to Eskom and when he was 

Deputy President  and he was chair ing the War Room, the 
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deal  had not  gone through.  I t  was await ing compet i t ion 

commission approval .   I  th ink that  was granted in  August .   

So I  suspect  there may have been conf l icts but  then again,  I  

am not  an expert .    

 The membership of  the War Room included people l ike 

Professor Eberhardt  f rom UCT,  who has never in my 

presence,  ut tered an intel l igent  academic or sane word about 

electr ic i ty or corporate strategy.    

 I  quickly came to real ise that  the War Room was not  

about  load-shedding and turn ing Eskom around.  Something 10 

else was happening.   Eskom senior managers were being 

destructed f rom f ight ing load-shedding by being made to 

at tend endless meet ings at  which they were supposed to 

give unending and meaningless reports.    

 I  was uncomfortable wi th the War Room and stop 

at tending i ts meet ings.   I f  the War Room had been doing i ts  

work di l igent ly,  i t  would have solved the load-shedding cr is is 

before I  arr ived at  Eskom.   

 I  was rel ieved when President  Zuma closed i t  down in  

favour of  giv ing management a fai r  chance at  f ight ing load-20 

shedding and turning the economy around and turning the 

company around.   

 Under my leadership and the leadership of  – and the 

leadership and technical  expert ise of  people l ike Mr Koko 

and other engineers,  the engineers at  Eskom, the guardians 
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as they cal led them, the employees of  Eskom who, when I  

was there,  became very reverberated and determined to end 

load-shedding wi th the f igured load-shedding in  August  2015.    

 On the 8t h of  August  2015 we stopped load-shedding.   

And we never had load-shedding again for three years af ter I  

had lef t  Eskom.  Load-shedding came back to Eskom af ter  

Mr Cyri l  Ramaphosa fol lowing the R 1 bi l l ion Lazarec(?)  

[00:07:29]  Conference was appointed president  of  the 

count ry.   That  is when load-shedding came back.    

 And af ter he was appointed president  of  the country and 10 

he in turn appointed the smooth talk ing and the dictator ia l  

Pravin Gordhan as Minister of  Publ ic Enterpr ises.   The less I  

say about Pravin Gordhan the bet ter.    

 As you see Chairperson,  despi te  his smooth talk ing,  

Publ ic Enterpr ises are fai l ing and i t  appears that  they are on 

a course to be sold to pr ivate interest .    

 My suspicion is that  l ike the javel in.   They wi l l  be thrown 

over the fence and be caught at  a later stage.   I t  just  a 

suspicion.   To put  i t  mi ld ly  Chairperson.   The si tuat ion made 

me s ick.   I  found the behaviour of  Glencore and that  of  20 

Mr Cyri l  Ramaphosa to be revol t ing.    

 Mr Ramaphosa must  have known about what Glencore 

sought to achieve.   He was the Chai rperson of  the company 

that  was bought wi thout  a due di l igence.   He was 

chairperson when the penal t ies were imposed.   
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 He was st i l l  chai rperson of  Opt imum when the unlawful  

agreement that  sought to increase the pr ice of  coal  to f rom 

150 and set  aside the penal t ies,  was negot iated wi th certain 

members of  Eskom’ staff  in 2014.    

 He knew that  he was being used based on pol i t ical  

standing hoped to inf luence matters to Glencore’s  favour.   

He had an interest  in the matter,  a 9.64%.  He is not  naïve 

and he has been deal ing wi th these corporates which gave 

him his r iches.    

 Mr Mat j i la Koko was interrogated at  length about  th is  10 

agreement that  was entered into before I  arr ived.   He told 

me that  the board had not  sanct ioned that  agreement .    

 They also told me that  the off ic ia l  who had signed i t  had 

no author i ty to do so but  th is is hearsay evidence which I  

shal l  not  burden you wi th.   Al though i t  is hearsay evidence 

Chairperson,  at  least  I  know i t  was Mr Koko.   I  am not  te l l ing 

you i t  was somebody’s brother that  I  do not  know.   

 I  hope that  Mr Koko wi l l  shed more l ight  on this aspect  

when the Commission ends i ts fascinat ion wi th the 

suspension of  the execut ives in the hearing of  his evidence.    20 

 Dr Ben Ngubane and members of  his board understood 

the si tuat ion per fect ly wel l .   For them, I  received the 

blessing to do what was r ight  and for that  I  am thankful .    

 I t  is a  pi ty  that  th is Commission on State Capture missed 

an opportuni ty to  invest igate the nature of  the cost  plus 
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mines and 40-year cont racts and what is current ly co l lapsing 

Eskom.  I t  is t ru ly an in just ice to the ent i re economy.   

 I f  th is were to be invest igated properly,  we wi l l  a l l  see 

the real  problems f rom which we are being diver ted.   I  

bel ieve wi th the b lessing of  Mr Cyri l  Ramaphosa and Pravin 

Gordhan.   

 I  f ind i t  to  be strange that  the focus is  on Tegeta g iven 

the fact  that  Tegeta suppl ied less than 4% of  Eskom coal ,  

whi le in 2015,  four other whi te r ich companies suppl ied more 

than 80% of  Eskom coal  to the va lue in excess of  10 

R 40 bi l l ion per annum with 40-year cont racts.   I t  goes into 

the t r i l l ions Chai rperson over the 40-year per iod and yet  we 

are here talk ing about th is meet ing and that  meet ing,  

concerning a company that  was qui te l i tera l ly not  supplying 

much.   

 Why some of  us did not  have the pr iv i lege of  explaining 

our  side of  the story in an interview with  the former Publ ic 

Protector wi th respect  to Opt imum Coal Mine?   

 I t  is c lear that  Glencore had unvet ted access to her and 

were able to impress on her what their  beef  wi th Eskom was.   20 

Mr Ephron test i f ied in th is Commission on page 7 of  the 

t ranscr ipt  dur ing h is hearing on the 27t h of  February 2019.   

 He test i f ied that  he – they did have a meet ing wi th the 

Off ice of  the Publ ic Protector,  something that  I  was not  

afforded as a person against  whom they were complaining.   
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She did not  bother to interview me for my s ide of  the story 

as is requi red by the Publ ic Protector  Act .    

 Sect ion 7(9) ta lks about  whether  -  what a Publ ic 

Protector must  do when a person is impl icated.   She must  

inform the person and give that  person an opportuni ty to be 

heard and to interv iew the wi tnesses that  came with the 

evidence.   She did none of  that .    

 Instead,  she proceeded in unprecedented haste to wri te  

and label  as f inal  a report  which has been used by the media 

to l ink certain people including mysel f  and which gave r ise to 10 

this Commission.   I  th ink this Commission is the chi ld of  

report  that  was wri t ten in very suspicious ci rcumstances.   

That  is when Mr Madonsela was leading and was in  a hurry 

as i f  there was not  going to be a Publ ic Protector anymore in 

South Af r ica.    

 Glencore is  a mult i -b i l l ion rand company.   Their  BEE 

partner,  Mr Cyri l  Ramaphosa, subsequent ly rose to become 

the Deputy President  and then President  of  the count ry.   I t  is  

rumoured that  – and this happened without  any cool ing-off  

per iod – i t  is rumoured that  he has campaigned to become 20 

president  of  the ANC was f inanced to the tune of  R 1 bi l l ion.   

This was unprecedented in the Af r ican Nat ional  Congress.    

 I  dare say that  i t  was not  in l ine wi th the cul ture,  values 

and ethos of  the ANC that  I  have come to know and which I  

cont inue to be a member of .    
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 Mere mortals l ike mysel f ,  s imple do not  stand a chance 

to repeat  ourselves against  these powerful  forces who are 

t ry ing to extort  R 8 bi l l ion f rom a state-owned ent i ty,  Eskom.   

 Const i tut ional  bodies wrote powerful  reports about  us 

and no one dared to quest ion the procedural  fa i rness that  

disrespect  for natural  just ice and the const i tut ion because 

r ight  we had,  I  bel ieve,  i t  is in the Const i tut ion.    

 Or  even the unlawfulness in the manner in which the 

Publ ic Protector ’s Off ice under Thul i  Madonsela has 

conducted i tsel f  by disregarding Sect ion 7(9) of  the act .   10 

Nevertheless,  I  cont inued to have fa i th in our Const i tu t ion,  a  

pr inciple of  t ransformat ive const i tut ional ism and the ru le of  

law.   

 I  am aware Chai rperson that  even as I  make this  

statement,  law enforcement agencies may be ready to 

pounce and judge me with cr iminal  acts.   I  appear before you 

and state that  my conscience is clear.    

 This I  know because a spokesperson of  the SIU,  

Mr Geniel(?) said dur ing a te levis ion interview about the 

pending case relat ing to Eskom against  mysel f  and others 20 

but  they had not  concluded their  invest igat ions,  that  they 

have not  interviewed me and that  the single court  process 

against  mysel f  and others is part  of  thei r  invest igat ions on 

mysel f .    

 Thei r  v iews of  law enforcement and const i tut ional  bodies 
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is not  a myth.   But  no amount  of  manipulat ion of  state 

inst i tut ions and agencies and int imidat ion wi l l  deter me.   

 I t  is unfortunate that  the courts appeared to have a lso 

fal len to the narrat ive of  the so-cal led State Capture,  which 

by the way Chai rperson,  you must  st i l l  establ ish whether or  

not  i t  existed.   I t  was the purpose of  th is Commission.   But  

people talk as i f  you had already made your f indings.    

 Somet imes even your own tongue sl ips and talks about i t  

as i f  there is a f inding.   When this nightmare is over,  our  

count ry wi l l  return to normalcy.   I  hope that  af ter th is 10 

nightmare,  some amongst  us would desist  f rom pol i t ical  

l inking and purges and rather focus on the sacred task of  

rebui ld ing our country.    

 I  wi l l  assist  the Commission as best  as I  can.   Just  for  

the record Chai rperson.   I  submit ted this aff idavi t  that  is in  

f ront  of  you in May.    

 I  have wri t ten numerous let ters to the Commission,  

request ing to  come and I  was told I  was not  scheduled and I  

must  wai t  and so on unt i l  December.   And in December,  to 

my surpr ise,  what I  get  is a summons.  A summons 20 

Chairperson who is has been begging to come.   

 I  fe l t  the Commission has a r ight  you to summons but  I  

fe l t  l ike i t  was unnecessari ly host i le because al l  i t  took – 

even i f  I  have been sent  an SMS message Chairperson,  I  

would have been here.    



15 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 329 
 

Page 29 of 102 
 

 Af ter the summons was issued,  the f i rst  th ing that  we did 

is.   We received the summons, we are happy to  come.  

Please indicate what i t  is  about?  Which matter is  i t?  Is i t  

Transnet,  Eskom?  Is i t  Eskom?  Which Eskom matters?  No 

reply.   No reply r ight  through December.   No response.   Unt i l  

three days before the day which I  was supposed to come.   

Tuesday,  Tuesday night  at  ten o’clock at  night ,  we received 

the documents.   One thousand four hundred pages of  

documents.    

 I  spent  the last  two days going through the documents.   I  10 

did not  s leep last  night  because I  d id not  want to  come here 

and say to you Chai rperson,  can we have a postponement.   I  

wanted to engage.  Af ter al l ,  I  had said that  I  had been ready 

for a very long t ime but  i t  is  unfortunate in the manner in 

which th is was done.   

 I t  is also unfortunate that ,  i f  they port ray me for lack of  

not  going through some of  the parts of  the documents as a 

person who is not  prepared or who is reluctant  to appear 

before the Commission.    

 Despi te the fact  that  I  was advised – legal  advice was:   20 

You must t reat  th is careful ly.   Th is is very ser ious.   You 

cannot go in wi thout  having gone through the documents 

properly.   I  insisted that  I  wi l l  appear.    

 That  is why Chai rperson I  have been seeking to come 

and present  my side of  the story.   A natural  just ice r ight  that  
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was denied me – that  was denied to me by the former Publ ic 

Protector.    

 My heart  is at  ease.   I  am ready to face the 

consequences of  fo l lowing the big dates of  my conscience.   

Thank you,  Chai rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Mr Molefe.   I  th ink there are 

certain parts of  your  statement which made me wish we had 

received i t  in advance to give i t  to certain people or at  least  

warned them about i t .    

 But  I  th ink I  can understand that  there may be di fferent  10 

views about whether  there would be a need to do that .   But  

maybe that  – i f  I  had – i f  we received i t  in advance,  we 

would have preferred to  err  on the side of  caut ion and given 

i t .    

 So I  just  make th is point  to indicate that ,  to the extent  

that  ei ther you or your counsel  might  have taken the view 

that  there is nothing that  impl icates anybody.   I  am not  

cr i t ic is ing that .   I  am not  cr i t ic is ing that  but  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Chai rperson . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . I  may have preferred to err  on the side 20 

of  caut ion.   So I  just  wanted to make that  point .   You want to  

say something before I  proceed? 

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  Chairperson.   Mr Ramaphosa is 

ment ioned in my aff idavi t  of  May 2020.  Not  only ment ion 

him, I  a lso talk about  th is  issue of  the shares and so on.   I  
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do not  know i f ,  af ter reading that  a ff idavi t  on how ser iously 

that  aff idavi t  was taken.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    I f  there were any fur ther invest igat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    What surpr ised me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    is that  there was no fol low-up.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR MOLEFE :    There is nothing.   Even in  the papers that  I  10 

received on Tuesday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR MOLEFE :    Nothing says we would l ike to ta lk  about  th is  

issue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR MOLEFE :    This issue that  I  consider to be the most  

cr i t ical .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    I  am not  ra is ing i t  for the f i rst  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE :    In my aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  no,  no.   That  is f ine.   That  was 

the f i rst  point  I  wanted to make.  The second point  I  want  to 

make is that .   I  l ike the idea that  you have taken the at t i tude 

that  you want to assist  the Commission as much as you can.  
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 And I  th ink f rom the statement you have made, you have 

even said:   Yes,  I  agree that  when I  came to Eskom, there 

was a change of  at t i tude but  there were reasons for that .   

And I  wi l l  deal  wi th the reasons why that  was so.    

 And you have said,  you sought to act  in the interest  of  

Eskom.  That  is why there was that  change of  at t i tude.   So 

your statement gives me the impression that  you are ready 

to engage with issues wi th a view to placing the facts as you 

know them before the Commission on the very issues,  but  

also,  to give the Commission your perspect ive.    10 

 Because somet imes the facts are the same but  the 

perspect ives are di fferent  f rom di fferent  people.   So I  have 

said al l  a long that ,  as the Commission we want to get  al l  the 

perspect ives f rom di fferent  people.   We want to  get  facts 

f rom everybody.    

 And of  course,  what has happened in some instances is 

that  certain people have come forward to the Commission 

and given aff idavi ts,  g iven informat ion about the facts as 

they see them and thei r  perspect ive of  issues.    

 And then others who might  have a di fferent  perspect ive 20 

of  the same issues,  some of  them have not  come forward to  

say:   These are our perspect ives on the same issues or 

these are the facts as we know them.   

 The resul t  of  that  is that  unt i l  a l l  s ides give the 

Commission their  perspect ives and the facts as they see 
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them.   

 Whenever there is only evidence and perspect ive f rom 

one side and the other side does not  come forward,  i t  puts 

the Commission in a place where i t  on ly knows one side.   

And so I  am qui te clear and I  have said i t  before that  we 

want al l  perspect ives.   We want facts f rom al l  s ides.   So that  

when we make f indings,  we make f indings based on al l  

s ides,  facts and al l  s ides’ perspect ives.    

 So I  th ink your  statement,  at  least ,  g ives me the 

impression that  you are ready to give the Commission the 10 

facts as you know them and your own perspect ive on var ious 

issues which is qu i te important .    

 I  know that  you said that  somet imes even f rom me,  

somet imes when i t  comes to State Capture,  you say there is 

a sl ip  of  the tongue.  I  th ink. . .  Wel l ,  a l l  I  can say is .   From 

the beginning of  the Commission up to now, I  have t r ied to  

make i t  very clear  whenever I  ta lk about  State Capture that  I  

am talking about the al leged State Capture.    

 I  th ink that  anyone who examines what I  have said about 

State Capture in the hearings and in the media br ief ings,  wi l l  20 

f ind,  at  least ,  that  most  of  the t ime, I  am talking about  

al leged State Capture or State Capture,  i f  i t  is proved that  i t  

existed.    

 But  I  cannot say that  when you examined a l l  statements 

I  have made f rom 2018, whether  ins ide the hear ing or 
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outside,  and you might  not  f ind something that  you say:   Oh, 

okay.   He does not  say now al leged.   [ laughs]   You know.   

 But  certainly,  there is – certa inly f rom my side,  that  st i l l  

must  be proved and I  wi l l  only  make f indings when al l  

evidence has been completed.    

 So I  thought I  would just  ment ion that .   But  thank you 

very much.  I  th ink that  we should then – I  should al low Mr 

Seleka to start .   Okay Mr Seleka.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chairperson.   Mr Molefe and 

I  had a col legia l  exchange . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Before you proceed.  I t  would 

be good i f  I  could have a copy of  your statement Mr Molefe.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   I  was going to say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And my learned f r iend has ind icated,  he 

wants to give us.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mister . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV MASUKU SC :    Sorry,  Chai rperson.   That  copy that  you 

have,  have got  some minor edi ts on i t  but  there are. . .   ja,  

that  is just  typing errors and so on because we – I  f in ished i t  20 

l i teral ly . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You have one that  has – in which those 

minor errors had been corrected? 

ADV MASUKU SC :    Oh,  no I  do not  have i t  wi th me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  have?  Ja.  
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ADV MASUKU SC :    I  l i teral ly did not . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    . . . to come here.   So . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    But  i t  can be made avai lable.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  what can be done is.   This one can be 

replaced.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    With one that  has been corrected.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    That  has been properly edi ted.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Because over  the last  three days,  i t  

real ly had been a nightmare.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   And so i t  can be replaced with  

a version that  ref lects that  the errors have been corrected.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  wanted to say.   Mr Seleka as wel l  as 

Mr Masuku,  separately and together,  you can apply your  

minds as to whether th is statement was the corrected one.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    H’m.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Can or should be admit ted as an exhibi t  or 

not .   You do not  have to,  i f  you are not  ready to say that  

now, you can tel l  me later in the day.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chai r,  I  th ink my incl inat ion wi l l  be that  i t  

has to.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Because i t  makes reference to certain 

persons.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The two in part icular.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And I  th ink in al l  fa i rness to them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Once i t  is accepted,  i t  has to be served 

on them. 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So that  that  part  of  what he said about 

them does not  remain a mere statement.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    In the opening address.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   I  th ink Mr Masuku wishes to say 

something on this  point .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Deputy Chief  Just ice,  they are 

sabotaging me to come and stand behind the podium 20 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MASUKU SC :    [ Indist inct ]   

[Part ies intervening each other – unclear]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  what  are they prevent ing f rom going 
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to the podium? 

ADV MASUKU SC :    I  do not  understand . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Because you wanted to go to the podium.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Yes,  I  was . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink you must go to the podium.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  why have they prevented you?  

[ laughs]   Just  sani t ise the podium and then you can use i t .   

But  I  am sure Mr Masuku,  i t  is not  any at tempt to sabotaging 

you.   [ laughs]    10 

ADV MASUKU SC :    Deputy Chief  Just ice,  I  am in agreement 

wi th my learned f r iend’s view.  The al legat ions made in the 

statement are not  l ight  al legat ions.   That  State Capture is 

what you f ind in  the statement of  Mr Molefe.   I  rather  would 

add,  is that ,  perhaps what should be send to the – to those 

impl icated in the statement is not  just  the wri t ten statement 

that  has been handed up to you but  that  the t ranscr ipt  of  

what he . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Said.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    sa id . . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    . . .be part  of  h is  statement.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Of  what was said,  ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Because at  some point ,  I  th ink he was 

elaborat ing on certain th ings,  he would move away f rom the 
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statement and elaborate on certa in things.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    So i f  that  could be done.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    That  wi l l  be. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    The statement is not  l ight ly made.  I t  is 

a very ser ious statement.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    So I  do accept  that  i t  is one that  should 10 

be – certa inly . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Made an exhibi t .  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Ja,  yes.   But  just  to take advantage of  

the fact  that  I  am here.   I  made an error when I  said that  I  

was instructed by the Molefe at torneys.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    I t  is Molaba At torneys.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    But  our  inst ruct ing at torney is  

Mr Molefe.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MASUKU SC :    So i t  was just  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    There are a lot  of  Molefe’s.   So.   [ laughs]    

ADV MASUKU SC :    Yes,  no,  r ight  here. . .  [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   You got  him understand you have 
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been confused.   [ laughs]    

ADV MASUKU SC :    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Taken – we take i t  that  in  

reading the statement,  which is not  an aff idavi t ,  can we take 

i t  that  Mr Molefe was doing so on the understanding that  he 

is under oath,  therefore.   Al though i t  is a statement but  –  

because I  see he had al ready taken oath.    

ADV MASUKU SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  I  need to clar i fy i t  because he may 

have prepared i t  . . . [ intervenes]   10 

ADV MASUKU SC :    I  th ink he wi l l  answer that  for you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    So what we have canvassed that  is wi th 

him. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    And he has no di ff icul t ies turning i t  into 

an aff idavi t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Into an aff idavi t ,  yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    I f  i t  should be required by the 

Commission to do so.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    As he says,  some of  the things he made 

– some of  the al legat ions he made, al ready in his 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    In his aff idavi t .  



15 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 329 
 

Page 40 of 102 
 

ADV MASUKU SC :    . . . in his  aff idavi t .   So there wi l l  not  be 

any deviat ion f rom his cent ral  miss ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Which is to te l l  the Commission about 

what real  State Capture looks l ike.   [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Okay al r ight .  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Mr  Masuku.   Oh, I  d id  not  

real ise. . .   I  hope my watch is r ight .   I  d id not  real ise that  we 

have gone past  quarter past  eleven.   I t  says hal f -past  10 

eleven.   Is that  the r ight  t ime? 

ADV MASUKU SC :    I t  is the r ight  t ime Chai r.   We have gone 

beyond the tea-t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   So I  th ink that  we should take 

the tea-break now then,  so that  when we come back,  then 

you can start  leading Mr Molefe’s ev idence.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Okay that  is in order.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We wi l l  take the tea adjournment now.  I t  

is hal f -past .   We wi l l  resume at  quarter to twelve.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  you may proceed,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  I  must  jus t  e f fec t i ve ly  make th is  

announcement  tha t  go ing  fo rward  any w i tness who w ishes 

to  make remarks  wh ich  a re  no t  in  an  a f f idav i t  o r  s ta tement  

tha t  has been g iven to  the  Commiss ion  a l ready shou ld  

fo rward  h is  o r  her  s ta tement  to  the  Commiss ion  a t  leas t  

seven days befo re  the  da te  o f  hear ing  and ind ica te  tha t  

they wou ld  request  to  be  a l lowed to  read tha t  s ta tement  a t  

the  Commiss ion .   That  w i l l  g ive  the  Commiss ion  and 

oppor tun i ty  to  look  a t  i t  and see whethe r  anybody  shou ld  

be  a le r ted  to  i t ,  advance on i t .   So I  jus t  want  to  make tha t  10 

so  tha t  in  the  fu tu re  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    …everybody knows what  i s  go ing  to  

happen.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  p roceed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you ,  Cha i rperson.   Eskom 

bund le  17 ,  Cha i rperson,  EXHIBIT U38.   That  i s  the  bund le  

we w i l l  be  us ing .   EXHIBIT U38 conta ins  Mr  Mole fe ’ s  

a f f idav i t  and i t  s ta r ts  on  page 5 .   Mr  Mole fe ,  aga in  the  20 

b lack  pag ina t ion ,  the  top  le f t  hand corner .   You are  there ,  

Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I  am,  s i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   The a f f idav i t ,  Cha i rpe rson,  

runs up  to  page 38.   Mr  Mole fe ,  p lease go to  page 38.   38 ,  
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go  to  page 38.   Yes.   So tha t  is  the  las t  page  o f  the  

a f f idav i t .   You see the  s ignature  there  above the  name 

Br ian  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You conf i rm tha t  to  be  your  s ignature?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes i t  i s  indeed,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You conf i rm th is  en t i re  a f f idav i t  to  be 

your  a f f idav i t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes and I  a lso  con f i rm tha t  i t  was s igned on  

the  13  May 2020.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Mole fe .   Cha i rpe rson,  

may I  beg leave to  have i t  admi t ted  as  EXHIBIT U38.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  s ta r t ing  

a t  page 5  o f  Eskom bund le  17  is  admi t ted  together  w i th  i t s  

annexures as  EXHIBIT U38.1 .  

AFFIDAVIT  OF MR BRIAN MOLEFE TOGETHER WITH 

ANNEXURES HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  U38.1  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Cha i rperson,  

Mr  Mole fe  and I  had a  f r iend ly  d i scuss ion  th i s  morn ing  and 

I  to ld  h im tha t  Dr  Ngubane remembers  h im fo r  h i s  char i sma 20 

and dance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And danc ing  sk i l l s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja  and he sa id  he  w i l l  g ive  us  a  t rea t  

bu t  now he took a  long t ime in  h i s  address so  I  w i l l  s imp ly  

go  s t ra igh t  to  the  ev idence.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    There  w i l l  be  no  t ime fo r  danc ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Abso lu te ly,  Cha i r.   Ja ,  thank you,  Mr  

Mole fe .   Ample  ev idence has been  led  be fore  us  about  your  

secondment  to  Transnet  –  I  mean,  to  Eskom f rom Transnet .   

Cou ld  you te l l  the  Cha i rperson about  –  a  l i t t le  b i t  about  

when you …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Mole fe  –  Mr  Se leka. . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  Mr  Masuku.   Yes,  I  th ink  tha t  

qu i te  a  number  o f  the  in i t ia l  pages o f  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ’s  10 

a f f idav i t  ta lks  about  mat te rs  tha t  we do not  have to  dea l  

w i th .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    About  whethe r  h is  cont rac t  was one fo r  

an  indef in i te  per iod  or  a  f i xed  te rm and pens ion  and so  on  

because those mat te rs  have been dea l t  w i th  in  l i t i ga t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you do not  have to  dea l  w i th  t hose,  I  

th ink  i t  i s  su f f i c ien t  to  dea l  w i th  h is  secondment .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And when he s ta r ted  a t  Eskom on an 

ac t ing  bas is  and when he became –  when he was  

appo in ted ,  then to  go  to  the  rea l  i ssues.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .    
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Mr  Mole fe ,  so  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because I  th ink  a  lo t  o f  those mat te rs  

have been dea l t  w i th  in  l i t i ga t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  wh ich  there  has a  judgment .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  yes .   No,  I  have ind i ca ted  tha t  

much,  Cha i r,  the  pens ion  payout  w i l l  no t  be  t rave rsed in  

h is  ev idence.   But ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  you  cou ld  jus t  be fore  you go 

in to  the  secondment ,  jus t  te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson your  

p rev ious employment  p r io r  to  coming to  Eskom.   I f  you  do  10 

not  fo l low my quest ion  you w i l l  ask ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  no ,  i t  jus t  occur red  to  me how fa r  back  

you wanted to  go  bu t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sure  he  j us t  wants  the  employer  

be fore  the  Eskom employer  on ly.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    So  I  was –  I  worked in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  

Premie r  in  L impopo,  under  Premie r  Mangoro(?)  Mat lhod i (? )  

as  a  Ch ie f  D i rec tor  fo r  S t ra teg i c  P lann ing .   I  have  worked  20 

in  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  as  a  d i rec tor  in  the  budge t  o f f i ce 

dea l ing  w i th  p rov inc ia l  budgets  and I  was promoted aga in  

to  Ch ie f  D i rec tor  dea l ing  w i th  p rov inc ia l  budgets  and  then I  

became –  sor ry,  asset  management ,  Ch ie f  D i rec to r  Asset  

Management  wh ich  was ac tua l l y  about  s ta te  owned  
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en t i t ies ,  the  asse ts  were  the  s ta te  owned ent i t ies .    

In  fac t  wh i le  I  was there  i t  was dur ing  the  t ime when  

the  PFMA was be ing  wr i t ten  and I  was in  par t  o f  the 

commi t tee  tha t  wro te  the  pa r ts  o f  the  PFMA tha t  re la te  to  

s ta te  owned ent i t ies  and I  p romoted to  Deputy  D i rec tor  

Genera l ,  asset  and l iab i l i t y  management ,  where  we 

managed the  debt ,  South  A f r i ca ’s  debt  bo th  in  domest ic  

and in te rnat iona l  cap i ta l  marke ts ,  the  issu ing  o f  bonds in  

the  domest ic  cap i ta l  marke t  and the  issu ing  o f  bonds in  the  

in te rnat iona l  cap i ta l  marke ts  to  f inance the  de f ic i t .    10 

We a l so  d id  cash management  and the  Ch ie f  

D i rec tor  who was now do ing  asset  management  a lso  

repor ted  to  me,  so  i t  was  s ta te  owned ent i t ies  and debt  

management .  

And then I  was  sent  to  the  Pub l ic  Investments  

Commiss ioners  a t  the  t ime as  a  sec re ta ry  f o r  the  

Commiss ion .   We s tar ted  a  process to  change the  

leg is la t ion  to  conver t  the  Pub l ic  Investments  

Commiss ioners  in to  a  corpora t ion  because rea l l y  the  P IC 

was an asset  management  company and we wanted to  20 

pro fess iona l i se  i t  and when I  was …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    When was tha t ,  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  went  to  the  P IC I  th ink  in  2000 or  2001.   I  

was the re  un t i l  about  2008.   I  was there  fo r  seven  years .   

The Pub l ic  Investment  Corpora t ion  Act  was passed in  2004  
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and wh i le  I  was there ,  we were  manag ing  assets  –  when I  

jo ined,  assets  under  management  were  about  R310  b i l l i on  

and by  the  t ime I  le f t  in  2008,  assets  under  management  

were  about  R950 b i l l i on ,  jus t  sho r t  o f  one t r i l l i on .    

 Subsequent ly,  I  th ink  about  a  year  a f te r  I  le f t ,  the  

assets  went  ove r  one t r i l l i on  and  they s tayed about  one 

t r i l l i on .   And …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A f te r  2008?  A f te r  2008 where  d id  you 

go?  

MR MOLEFE:    A f te r  2008 fo r  about  a  year  I  dec ided  10 

maybe I  was go ing  to  do  my own th ing  and do some pr iva te  

t ransact ions by  myse l f .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  le t  me ask you th i s ,  when d id  you  

jo in  Transnet?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  th ink  i t  was 2010.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    2010?  

MR MOLEFE:    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  i t  was 2011.  

MR MOLEFE:    Was i t  2011?  Yes,  thereabouts ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You jo ined Transnet  in  2011,  ear ly,  I  20 

th ink  i t  may have been February  or  March or  the reabout .  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  I  may make mis takes but  I  

have submi t ted  my CV,  wh ich  has accura te  de ta i l s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  bu t  f rom …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    I  must  apo log ise .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  m igh t  have le f t  the  P IC in  2009 then and  

went  to  Transnet  in  2011.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  I  remember  there  was about  18  months  

where  I  was jus t  do ing  ga rden ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   I  have read  somewhere  tha t  you le f t  

P IC in  2010.   I s  tha t  incor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  i s  poss ib le  because a t  the  t ime  when I  

was leav ing  the  P IC I  kept  say ing  to  the  board  tha t  I  wou ld  10 

l i ke  to  leave and they kept  say ing  s tay  fo r  another  s ix  

months ,  s tay  fo r  another  th ree  months ,  s tay  –  my cont rac t  

had ended.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  impor tance o f  whether  you le f t  

P IC 2010 re la tes  to  when exact ly  d id  you leave because I  

may have misunders tood  you but  I  though you sa id  you le f t  

P IC in  2008.  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i r,  we can go th rough my CV.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Which  is  an  annexure  and I  th ink  i t  i s  more  20 

accura te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  have not  worked fo r  too  many  

employers .   I  wou ld  have thought  tha t  you wou ld  know 

these th ings eas i l y  because you were  jus t  in  the  Premier ’s  

o f f i ce  in  L impopo ,  you were  in  Nat iona l  Treasury,  you were  
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in  P IC and then a f te r  tha t  you were  in  Transnet .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  we on ly  s ta r ted  there ,  Cha i rpe rson? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Hey?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  where  we s tar ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  on  page 46.  

MR MOLEFE:    Sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 46.  

MR MOLEFE:    46?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Us ing  the  b lack  numbers  on  the  top  le f t  10 

o f  each –  o f  a  page.  

MR MOLEFE:    46 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  the  CV s tar t s  a t  page 46.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   2011,  2015 a t  Transnet  and June  

2003 to  Ju l y  2010 a t  Pub l ic  Investments  Corpora t ion .   I  am 

sor ry,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     On wh ich  page?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  I  was  r igh t ,  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page 48 you CV says February  2011 to  20 

Apr i l  2015 you were  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  o f  Transnet .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  was r igh t  about  when you s tar ted  a t  

Transnet .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  what  we do –  what  we need to  see is  

when you le f t  P IC.  

MR MOLEFE:    Your  memory  is  impeccab le ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE:    I  say  your  memory  is  impeccab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  rea l l y.   I  remember  some th ings and  

I  do  no t  remember  o ther  th ings.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  there ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  do  no t  see –  I  do  no t  know i f  you 

dea l  w i th  P IC he re .   You shou ld  be  dea l ing  w i th  i t  bu t  I  10 

cannot  immedia te ly  see.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  there .   I t  is  there ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  has  June 2003 to  Ju l y  2010 ,  Ch ie f  

Execut ive  Off i cer  o f  Pub l ic  Investment  Corpora t ion .   On the  

same page.  

MR MOLEFE:    On page 48?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Where  i t  says  work  exper ience.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  can  see tha t ,  so  I  th ink  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    So  i t  s ta r ts  w i th  Eskom,  i t  goes to  Transnet  

then i t  goes to  P IC.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  I  was r igh t  a lso  tha t  you le f t  

P IC in  2010.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Jus t  by  way 

o f  a  background,  Mr  Mole fe ,  the  Gupta  bro thers ,  Mr  Sa l im 

Essa,  have become the  h igh l igh t  o f  the  day and jus t  by  way 

o f  a  background  cou ld  you exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson,  10 

s ta r t ing  f i rs t  w i th  the  Gupta  bro thers ,  whether  you  had –  

you knew them,  you had any re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them,  o f  

what  k ind?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  fee l  l i ke ,  Cha i rperson,  le t  me s ta r t  w i th  

Sa l im Essa because I  th ink  i t  i s  eas ie r.   I  ac tua l l y  do  no t  

know Sa l im Essa .   I  have never  met  h im.   I  do  no t  know 

what  he  looks l i ke .   I  hear  about  h im.    

 The Gupta  bro thers  I  know and I  know a l l  th ree  o f  

them but  the  one tha t  I  know – tha t  I  had a  lo t  o f  

in te rac t ions w i th  was in  fac t  Mr  A jay  Gupta  and not  h is  two  20 

bro thers .   And ja ,  I  know Mr  A jay  Gupta ,  I  have been to  h is  

house.   I  have been to  the i r  house and I  have been there  

on  numerous occas ions to  a t tend fami ly  funct ions,  to  have  

pr iva te  meet ings,  a  lo t  o f  t imes,  so  I  know them.   I  know 

them qu i te  we l l ,  espec ia l l y  Mr  A jay  Gupta .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    So  I  w i l l  no t  t ry  to  say to  you tha t  I  do  no t  

know them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:    L ike  i t  i s  fash ionab le  to  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you a lso  te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson 

accord ing  to  your  reco l lec t ion  when d id  you come to  know 

them? 

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  a  very  long s to ry  and –  10 

but  I  be l ieve  you have the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  I  d id  no t  hear  tha t  f i rs t  

sentence.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  say  i t  i s  a  very  long s to ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   We l l ,  w i l l  i t  take  f i ve ,  ten  

m inutes?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  more .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Much more  than  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    The Commiss ion  w i l l  go  over  budget .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  us  f i rs t  g ive  you f i f teen minutes  

and see whether  tha t  w i l l  do .    

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Te l l  us  –  yes.  
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MR MOLEFE:    Whi le  I  was a t  the  P IC I  was ca l led  by  Dr  

Motsuenyane.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Dr?  

MR MOLEFE:    Motsuenyane,  Sam Motsuenyane. .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sam Motsuenyane  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    And he asked me to  come to  h is  house on a  

Saturday a f te rnoon and we sa t  under  a  t ree  and they made 

us  tea  and he to ld  me a  very  long  s to ry,  long pa in fu l  s to ry.   10 

He sa id  to  me tha t  in  1964 an i dea occur red  to  h im tha t  

par t  o f  the  p rob lem tha t  A f r ican peop le  were  no t  

p rogress ing  was  access to  c red i t  and ye t  they were  

c lass i f ied  as  h igh  r i sks  by  the  bank and ye t  the  money tha t  

was in  the  banks was the i rs  because they made depos i ts .  

 So he says i t  occur red  to  h im tha t  maybe what  he  

shou ld  do  is  es tab l i sh  a  bank tha t  wou ld  be  an A f r i can 

Bank.   In  fac t  tha t  i s  what  i t  was  ca l led .   And he says he  

went  a round a l l  the  townsh ips  and  v i l lages in  South  A f r i ca  

t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh  a  bank.   Try ing  to  es tab l i sh  a  bank and 20 

there  were  no  ho te ls  there .   In  fac t ,  the  ho te ls  tha t  were  

there  d id  no t  take  b lack  peop le  in  the  ‘60 ’s  and the  ‘70 ’s  

and he s lep t  in  peop le ’s  houses and to ld  them about  th is  

idea o f  es tab l i sh ing  a  bank and they donated  money  

towards the  es tab l i shment  o f  the  bank,  these bus iness 
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peop le  who owned ca fes  and butcher ies  and A f r i can peop le  

tha t  were  no t  a l lowed to  be  invo l ved in  manufac tu r ing  by  

leg is la t ion  a t  the  t ime.  

 So i t  took  h im 10 years  to  ra ise  R1 mi l l ion  w i th  

wh ich  to  es tab l i sh  a  bank and then when he had ra ised tha t  

R1 mi l l ion ,  he  says he  spoke to  the  ANC about  i t  and they 

gave the i r  b less ings bu t  a lso  d i rec ted  h im to  go  to  London 

and speak to  Barc lays  and he d id .   And Barc lays  sa id  we  

w i l l  he lp  you and they gave h im the  R9 mi l l ion  and he came 

to  South  A f r i ca  and he had R10 mi l l ion  w i th  wh ich  to  10 

es tab l i sh  a  bank.  

 Now he came to  South  A f r i ca  and  had to  app ly  fo r  

bank ing  l i cence f rom the  Reserve  Bank and the  Reserve  

Bank  d id  no t  re fuse h im,  they gave h im a  bank ing  l i cence  

w i th  Barc lays  bu t  pu t  onerous cond i t ions  inc lud ing  the 

board  membersh ip  o f  the  bank and a l l  sor ts  o f  th ings.   I t  

was inc identa l l y  headquar te red in  Ga-Rankuwa,  wh ich  is  

where  I  am f rom and I  remember  i t  very  we l l ,  i t  was in  Zone 

16,  next  to  the  c inema there ,  Makoko(? )  

 So he says because o f  the  cond i t ions  o f  the  20 

Reserve  Bank  the  bank s t rugg led .   For  example ,  they were  

no t  a l lowed to  open cur ren t  accounts  and ye t  the i r  c l ien ts  

were  bus iness peop le  f rom the  townsh ip .   They had to  

come and w i thdraw cash to  go  to  Makro  – to  Met ro  and to  

Makro  every  Fr iday to  buy s tock .   So they cou ld  no t  jus t  go  
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and s ign  cheques  there  and i t  was  very  pa in fu l  exper ience 

under  the  superv i s ion  o f  a  very  host i le  Reserve  Bank a t  the 

t ime.  

 But  a  long s to ry  shor t ,  Cha i rperson,  h is  po in t  was  

Mole fe ,  you are  now CEO of  the  P IC,  i t  con t ro ls  so  many  

b i l l i on  rands,  the  Governor  o f  the  Reserve  Bank is  a  b lack  

man who comes f rom the  ANC and the  ANC is  in  power,  the  

ANC tha t  had bought  in to  th is  idea in  the  f i rs t  p lace  in  the 

‘70 ’s  and [ ind i s t inc t  –  speak ing  A f r i can l anguage ]  wh ich  

means [ ind i s t inc t  –  speak ing  A f r ican language] ,  what  i s  so  10 

d i f f i cu l t  fo r  you guys?   

And,  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  was a lso  a  very,  very  –  I  

took  those words  to  hear t  and I  went  back to  the  P IC and I  

th ink  i t  was …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    He was say ing  in  e f fec t  look  what  I  d id  

under  very  d i f f i cu l t  cond i t ions .  

MR MOLEFE:    Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi th  host i l i t y  coming f rom the  Reserve  

Bank  and i t  was  apar the id  government ,  now you have an 

ANC government ,   you have the  ANC here ,  you  have a  20 

governor  o f  the  Reserve  Bank who has the  background o f  

the  ANC,  he  is  b lack  …[ in tervenes ]  

MR MOLEFE:    The pres ident  o f  the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The cond i t ions  are  –  shou ld  be  much 

more  eas ier  fo r  you to  ach ieve these th ings.  
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MR MOLEFE:    Exact ly.   To  ach ieve th is  th ing ,  to  captu re  

the  sav ing  o f  A f r i can peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:    Wi th  the  purpose o f  re invest ing  them.   

Re invest ing  them,  to  advance and improve the  cond i t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He was say ing  what  i s  your  p rob lem? 

MR MOLEFE:    He says –  ja .   Ac tua l l y,  he  d id  no t  say  what  

i t  i s  -  [ ind is t inc t  –  speak ing  A f r i can  language] .   I  th ink  what  

i s  your  p rob lem is  m i ld .    [ ind is t inc t ]  i s  [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  why a re  you  fa i l ing? 10 

MR MOLEFE:    Why a re  you fa i l ing?   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes .   So,  Cha i rperson,  I  mean,  i t  gave  

me s leep less  n igh ts  and I  came back and though t  about  

th is  th ing .   A t  about  the  same t ime there  was a  rumour  tha t  

Nedbank is  fo r  sa le  and I  dec ided tha t  maybe what  we  

shou ld  do  i s  take  Nedbank and t ransform i t  in to  th is  bank 

tha t  Mr  Motsuenyane was ta lk ing  about .  

 So I  mu l led  over  the  idea.   I  con tac ted  Nedbank,  i t  

i s  owned by  O ld  Mutua l .   They conf i rmed tha t  Nedbank was  20 

indeed fo r  sa le .   They had adv ised we were  supposed to  

oversee the  sa le ,  expressed my in te res t  and they  agreed  

and they sa id  bu t  Mo le fe ,  can you ra ise  the  cap i ta l?   I  sa id  

I  w i l l  t ry.   And I  le f t  the  P IC to  go  on  th i s  m iss ion  and I  

went  to  London to  speak to  peop le  there  about  do ing  th is  
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and I  even thought  o f  maybe we cou ld  buy some o the r  

banks l i ke  S tandard  –  no t  S tandard  Bank,  the  one  tha t  i s  

ou ts ide  South  A f r i ca .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  wh i le  Mr  Mole fe  i s  th ink ing ,  Cha i r… 

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  I  remember  i t  now,  bu t  i t  i s  S tandard  

someth ing .   But ,  anyway …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Mole fe ,  so r ry.   I  was say ing  to  the  

Cha i rperson wh i l e  you are  th ink ing  I  must  remind you tha t  

your  p i lo t  exper ience and es t imat ion  o f  t ime shou ld  no t  fa i l  

me.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  the  Cha i rperson jus t  gave me. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .   But ,  Cha i rperson,  in  South  A f r i ca  the re  

was a  fami ly  tha t  had come f rom Ind ia ,  had es tab l i shed  

themse lves as  bus iness peop le  and had opened a  computer  

company and –  we l l ,  I  heard  tha t  they were  do ing  qu i te  

we l l  and I  went  to  them and I  asked,  i f  one wants  to  

es tab l i sh  a  bank,  what  –  where  can one get  the  cap i ta l?   

How can one ra i se  the  cap i ta l  to  es tab l i sh  such a  bank?   

And they sa id  tha t  i s  very  in te res t ing .   You know,  in  Ind ia 20 

we have banks tha t  a re  Ind ian-owned,  tha t  our  banks l i ke  

Bank o f  Baroda and severa l  o the rs ,  le t  us  speak to  some 

peop le  in  Eng land –  I  mean,  in  Ind ia ,  to  see i f  they  w i l l  be  

ab le  to  ass i s t  and  they d id .    

 I  am not  sure  i f  I  shou ld  ment ion  who they spoke to  
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bu t  they spoke to  one o f  the  r i chest  peop le  in  Ind ia .   I  met  

h im.   I  am jus t  re luc tan t  to  re lease  h is  name now.   And he  

agreed and he sa id  we w i l l  do  the  dea l .  

 A f te r  f i ve  m inutes  o f  d iscuss ion ,  he  sa id  I  w i l l  he lp  

buy a  bank.   I  was happy,  I  was e la ted .   And we went  to  the  

Reserve  Bank w i th  th is  pe rson and  the  Guptas  and Mr  A jay  

Gupta .   And we  got  to  the  Reserve  Bank and bank ing  

superv i s ion  sa id  no ,  we cannot  a l low th i s  to  happen,  

Nedbank cannot  be  so ld ,  we have a l ready so ld  S tandard  

Bank to  the  Ch inese.   We have a l ready so ld  ABSA to  the  10 

Eng l ish .  

 I  remember  when the  Barc lays  Bank came to  the  

P IC,  when I  was  CEO,  to  say tha t  they wou ld  l i ke  to  buy 

ABSA and I  sa id  to  them I  d id  no t  th ink  tha t  the  Ang lo  Boer  

War  wou ld  end l i ke  th is .  

 Any anyway,  bu t  then the  Reserve  Bank  was  

re luc tan t  to  p roceed and w i th  the  Reserve  Bank re luc tan t  

to  p roceed –  the  Governor  was Mr  Mboweni .   I  do  no t  know 

i f  I  am imp l ica t ing  h im,  bu t  he  was Mr  Mboweni .   And I  

even saw h im –  we had a  code fo r  th is .   I f  you  ask  h im 20 

what  i s  the  Grob lersda l  m inute ,  he  w i l l  te l l  you  wha t  i t  i s .   

I t  was about  a  b lack  bank,  i t  was about  buy ing  Nedbank.  

 So i t  was tu rned down by the  Reserve  Bank,  so  we  

d id  no t  p roceed and so  I  was le f t  –  then I  thought  I  wou ld  

es tab l i sh  a  proper ty  company.   I  spoke to  Investec  and  
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they  were  prepared to  he lp  in  however  way they cou ld  he lp .   

And then one day  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do not  speak too  fa r  away f rom your  

m ic .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    And then one day I  go t  a  ca l l .   Not  f rom the  

Guptas ,  f rom a  head-hunte r  ca l led  Br ian  –  now I  am ta lk ing  

–  what  am I  –  I  am ta lk ing  about  Transnet  now.   Oh ,  how I  

know the  Guptas .   Okay,  tha t  i s  how I  know them,  10 

Cha i rperson.   That  i s   -  why now I  am go ing  to  Transnet .   

Now I  am go ing  to  how I  went  to  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  tha t  i s  how I  go t  to  know them.   We 

were  do ing  th is  dea l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    And r i gh t  th rough the  years ,  Cha i rperson,  

we never  s topped  ta lk ing  about  th is  bank.   And even up to  

today,  I  am s t i l l  ta lk ing  about  i t .   And even up to  t oday,  I  

am s t i l l  on  tha t  m iss ion ,  Cha i rperson,  o f  Dr  Motsuenyane.   20 

Hopefu l l y  be fore  he  passes on we can make h im p roud.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m  Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   So the  in te rac t ion  

w i th  them,  i t  i s  a  wh i le  back when  you were  a t  P IC  and  i t  

seems in  tha t  p rocess,  as  you say,  you came to  know them 
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very  we l l .   Yes.   But  jus t  keep your  m icrophone on.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  can  a l so  ment ion  tha t  wh i le  I  was a t  the  

P IC they a l so  t r ied  to  do  dea ls  the re .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    They a l so  t r ied  to  do  dea ls  there .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  a t  the  P IC.  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease look th is  s ide  so  I  can hear.  

MR MOLEFE:    They t r ied  to  do  dea ls  w i th  P IC,  they 

submi t ted  fund ing  app l i ca t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    And they were  no t  approved wh i le  I  was  10 

there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:    There  is  no t  a  s ing le  dea l  tha t  they d id  w i th  

the  P IC when I  was the re .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you ab le  to  remember  when i t  was  

you s ta r ted  in te rac t ing  w i th  them whi le  you were  a t  P IC?  

From a round wh ich  year?  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  maybe around 2007/2008.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    As  you have seen,  I  cannot  even remember  

my own l i fe .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  no t  ho ld  you to  i t ,  ja ,  okay,  
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con t inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And ta lk ing  about  dea ls ,  sor ry  I  am jus t  

go ing  ou t  o f  sequence a  b i t  bu t  we w i l l  come to  i t ,  ta lk ing  

about  dea ls  Mr  Mole fe  we know tha t  a t  leas t  tha t  a t  Eskom 

Tegeta  reach was  hav ing  l inks  w i th  the  Gupta  Bro the rs .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    They wou ld  ge t  dea ls  a t  Eskom.   

MR MOLEFE:    They d id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    They d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Se leka,  I  know I  am 10 

in te r rup t ing  you,  be fore  you get  to  Tegeta  le t  me ask some 

quest ion  to  Mr  Mole fe .   So you s tar ted  in te rac t ing  w i th  the 

Gupta  Bro thers ,  Gupta  fami ly  a round 2008,  tha t ’s  your  

es t imate ,  2007/2008 you are  no t  sure .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you sa id  ea r l ie r  on  you have been to 

the i r  house and I  th ink  you sa id  many t imes,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Pardon?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  you sa id  many t imes is  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  severa l  t imes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Severa l  t imes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  ove r  the  years  I  have los t  coun t  and I  

saw noth ing  wrong or  abhor ren t  in  go ing  to  the i r  house.   I  

saw them Cha i rperson as  peop le  i n  South  A f r i ca  who en joy  

the  r igh t  tha t  a re  in  our  const i tu t ion .    
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  had no reason to  t rea t  them l i ke  lepers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:    And as  peop le  pre tend tha t  they be  a t  the 

t ime when they met  them for  the  f i rs t  t ime.   I t  was a  normal  

re la t ionsh ip  tha t  I  had w i th  peop le  tha t  I  had approached  

and who had rece ived us  warmly  to  say le t ’s  ta lk  about  

es tab l i sh ing  th is  ins t i tu t ion .   They were  fo re igners  tha t  had  

come to  South  A f r i ca  bu t  were  p repared to  buy i n to  the  

v is ion  o f  a  bank tha t  wou ld  be long to  A f r i ca .    They were  10 

prepared to  buy  in to  the  v is ion  o f  tak ing  tha t  bank and  

mak ing  i t  a  bank o f  A f r i cans.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Or  l i ke  the  A f r ican Bank has been the  

v is ion  o f  Dr  Muz inyane and a  lo t  o f  our  own South  A f r i can 

bus iness peop le  d id  no t  buy in to  tha t  v is ion .   I  don ’ t  want  

to  go  in to  names but  I  ac tua l l y  have spoken to  a  lo t  o f  

peop le  who thought  tha t  look  they . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No tha t  i s  f ine .   I  assume tha t  as  the  

years  went  by  f rom around 2007 to  2008 when you  s tar ted  20 

in te rac t ing  w i th  them d id  your  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them get  

s t ronger,  d id  you get  c losu re  in  te rms o f  the  persona l  

re la t ionsh ip  or  p ro fess iona l ,  whatever  i t  was?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  I  can ’ t  say  c lose ,  i t  depends on how you  

def ine  c lose .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes o f  course .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  there  were  peop le  tha t  I  knew 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You in te rac ted  w i th  them.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  I  in te rac ted  w i th ,  where  I  t r ied  to  do  

th is  th ing  and had not  succeeded and the  v i s ion  was kept  

a l i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Even when the  Reserve  Bank tu rned us  

down we sa id ,  I  sa id  to  them tha t  i t  does not  mean tha t  we  10 

must  g i ve  up ,  and whenever  there  was in fo rmat ion  we  

wou ld  d i scuss i t ,  fo r  example  Bank  o f  Baroda a t  some po in t  

became our  ta rge t .    I t  opera tes  very  success fu l l y  in  

Tanzan ia  and in  fac t  I  have pa id  a  lo t  o f  v is i t s  to  Tanzan ia  

and I  jus t  made i t  my bus iness to  see some o f  the  branches 

o f  Bank o f  Baroda in  Tanzan ia .    There  was another  one 

tha t  opera tes  ou t  o f  Togo,  i t  i s  Eco Bank in  Togo.   That  one  

in  fac t  Cha i rpe rson Nedbank they asked me i f  you became,  

i f  you  bought  th is  bank and you became CEO of  the  Bank  

what  wou ld  you do?   I  sa id  you know what  your  p rob lem is  20 

as  Nedbank,  and  now I  rea l i se  tha t  I  was na ive  because I  

gave them a  ve ry  impor tan t  s t ra teg ic  th ing  tha t  I  had  

thought  about ,  and i t  was even before  we d id  the  dea l .     

 I  sa id  the  b iggest  bank in  A f r i ca  w i th  the  w ides t  

reach is  ac tua l l y  Eco Bank,  i t  has  more  branches than any 
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o ther  bank in  South  A f r i ca .   I t  s ta r ted  in  N iger ia ,  most  o f  

i t s  opera t ions are  in  N iger ia ,  i t s  headquar te rs  i s  in  Lome,  I  

don ’ t  know i f  you  have ever  been to  Lome Cha i rpe rson,  i t  

i s  a  ve ry  in te res t ing  p lace.  

 You see th is  market  in  town where  they se l l  A f r i can 

t rad i t iona l  th ings,  what  i s  i t  ca l led ,  maimai [? ] ,  there ’s  a  b ig  

one there  where  they se l l  a l l  sor ts  o f  th ings,  bu t  anyway I  

went  there  and I  saw i t ,  the  head o f f i ce ,  I  d idn ’ t  go  ins ide ,  

i t  i s  jus t  f rom outs ide  and i t  i s  a  very  impress ive  opera t ion  

bu t  the  prob lem wi th  i t  i s  tha t  the i r  opera t ions have not  10 

modern ised,  so  there  may be the  bank w i th  the i r  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  branches,  bu t  they  don ’ t  have the  – a t  the  

t ime the  issue was there ’s  AGMS’s  and now i t  w i l l  be  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  ja ,  so  they were  no t  mov ing  w i th  the  t imes.  

 So I  thought  tha t  i f  you  are  Nedbank and you buy  

Ecobank and you  modern ise  i t  w i th  a  reach on the  who le  

cont inent  you have done someth ing  very  b ig  and the  dea l  

d idn ’ t  happen w i th  Nedbank but  Nedbank went  and  bought  

Ecobank but  then they d idn ’ t  do  what  needed to  be  done.   

They a lso  d id  o ther  th ings,  Nedbank a t  the  t ime on ly  the  20 

count ry  they were  on ly  in  Lesotho and Namib ia ,  and I  

thought  what  i s  your  re luc tance to  go  ou ts ide  o f  South  

A f r i ca .   Wel l  o f  course  we know the  reason,  the  reason is  

because Nedbank ac tua l l y  i s  a  Neder landsche Bank,  i t  

came f rom the  Nether lands and i t  was an A f r i kaner  Bank  
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fo r  a  very  long t ime and perhaps tha t  i s  why they never  le f t  

South  A f r i ca ,  bu t  they bought  Ecobank w i th  the  P IC a f te r  I  

had le f t ,  so  we wou ld  meet  w i th  the  Guptas  and ta lk  about  

th is ,  and say look a t  what  your  f r iends are  do ing ,  Baroda,  

so-so  and so  on  and so  fo r th ,  ja ,  so  we wou ld  d iscuss  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . i ssues,  most  o f  the  t ime not  re la t ing  to  

Transnet  o r  Eskom actua l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Se leka? 10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Mole fe  be ing  so  

fa r  as  Mr  Sa l im Essa is  concerned I  d id  say tha t  I  w i l l  ask  

you th is  quest ion  about  Mr  Hank Beste r.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Remember  Mr  Hank Bester  says he  

had a  meet ing  in  2014 w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And dur ing  the  course  o f  tha t  meet ing  

Mr  Sa l im Essa sa id  to  show you how power fu l  we  are ,  o r  

someth ing  to  tha t  e f fec t ,  we have dec ided tha t  Mr  Br ian  20 

Mole fe  i s  go ing  to  be  the  CEO of  Eskom.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  2014 before  the  announcement  

fo r  your  secondment  . . . [ in te rvenes]    

MR MOLEFE:    In  20?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    2014.  

MR MOLEFE:    2014,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So how is  i t  tha t  he  knew you 

and you say you d idn ’ t  know h im based on tha t  ins tan t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Mr  Sa l im Essa?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes Mr  Sa l im Essa and you can  te l l  the 

Cha i rperson what  you sa id  you a re  go ing  to  say.  

MR MOLEFE:    What  I  sa id?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  you say w i l l  be  your  response to  

tha t  quest ion .  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes Cha i rpe rson  I  was s i t t ing  a t  Rocco 

Mama’s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    A t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Rocco Mama’s ,  you know Rocco  Mama’s 

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mmm.  

MR MOLEFE:    I t ’s  happen ing  there ,  i t  i s  no t  a  shebeen but  

. . .  i t  i s  a  res taurant  i t  se l l s  very  n ice  hamburgers ,  and not  

fa r  f rom my tab le  there  were  two Ind ian  lad ies .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  in  2014 .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You say i t  i s  Ind ian  lad ies?  

MR MOLEFE:    Hey?  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say Ind ian  lad ies?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I  th ink  they a re  s i s te rs ,  f rom the  way 

tha t  they looked,  bu t  I  cou ld  ove rhear  the i r  conversa t ion  

and one o f  them kept  say ing  tha t  Mr  Zondo is  go ing  to  be  

the  next  Ch ie f  Jus t ice .   I  jus t  th ink  i t  wou ld  be  unfa i r  to  ask  

you to  comment  on  tha t ,  i t  i s  exact ly  the  same th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no .  

MR MOLEFE:    And tha t  Mr  Se leka  w i l l  be  the  Deputy  Ch ie f  

Jus t ice  [ laugh ing ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  there  i s  no th ing  wrong in  be ing  –  

in  say look I  can ’ t  comment ,  I  don ’ t  where  he  got  tha t  10 

in fo rmat ion  f rom,  i f  tha t  i s  –  ja ,  there  is  no th ing  wrong w i th  

tha t  i f  you  don ’ t  know,  bu t  i f  you  –  you may we l l  have an  

idea where  he  might  have got  tha t  f rom in  wh ich  case you 

w i l l  say,  bu t  when  you have no idea  you have no idea .  

MR MOLEFE:     So you a lso  don ’ t  know? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm? 

MR MOLEFE:   So you a lso  don ’ t  know where  they go t  i t  

f rom? 

CHAIRPERSON:    What?   [ laugh ing ]  

MR MOLEFE:    No I  don ’ t  know Cha i rpe rson where  tha t  20 

conversa t ion  came f rom,  where  i t  was go ing ,  I  was not  

there ,  I  don ’ t  know Mr  Sa l im Essa,  I  have never  met  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you know peop le  tha t  know h im f rom 

whom he might  have got  tha t  in fo rmat ion  as  fa r  as  you  
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know or  you have no reason to  th ink  tha t  he  go t  i t  f rom 

anybody tha t  you knew? 

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  ac tua l l y  Cha i rperson I  don ’ t  know 

where  he  got  tha t  f rom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You don ’ t  know where ,  ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  i s  jus t  l i ke  a  lo t  o f  the  rumours  tha t  go  

around and round and round.   In  fac t  i t  i s  no t  someth ing  

tha t  I  wou ld  no rmal ly  app ly  my mind to  and wor ry  about  

and f re t  about  and t ry  to  f ind  ou t  where  i t  came f rom,  

because i t  i s  jus t  a  –  i t  happens  every  day Cha i rperson  10 

tha t  somebody has,  somebody was to ld  in  the  cor r idor  o r  a  

house,  a  s t range  house tha t  he  doesn ’ t  know tha t  –  about  

me,  and he doesn ’ t  even know who tha t  person is .   I  don ’ t  

a t tach  a  lo t  o f  we igh t  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  tha t  i s  fa i r  enough,  par t  o f  the 

reason why Mr  Se leka is  ask ing  is  tha t  so  tha t  i f  you  do  

know someth ing  you can share  i t .   I f  you  don ’ t  know you  

don ’ t  know,  bu t  I  th ink  we may as  we l l  ment ion  th is  even 

though i t  m igh t  re la te  to  Transnet  and you might  be  ab le  to  

dea l  w i th  i t ,  you  might  –  i f  you  say  you wou ld  pre fe r  to  dea l  20 

w i th  i t  when you  come back and  dea l  w i th  Transnet  tha t  

wou ld  be  f ine .  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  want  to  say you wou ld  know I  

assume tha t  in  2010,  December  the  New Age,  wh ich  was a 
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newspaper  owned by  the  Guptas  ran  an  ar t i c le ,  had an 

ar t i c le ,  I  don ’ t  know i f  i t  was December  6  or  December  10  

2010 wh ich  was e i ther  say ing  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  i s  go ing  to  

be  the  next  Group CEO of  Transnet  o r  the  next  boss o f  

Transnet  o r  whether  i t  was s imp ly  say ing  i t  i s  l i ke ly  tha t  Mr  

Br ian  Mole fe  i s  go ing  to  be  the  next  Group CEO of  

Transnet .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you heard  about  tha t  a r t i c le?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes  I  heard  about  i t ,  I  a lso  heard  the  10 

ta lk  about  i t  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  you don ’ t  know where  they go t  

tha t  in fo rmat ion  f rom? 

MR MOLEFE:    I  don ’ t  know but  d id  they say in  the  ar t i c le  

where  they go t  the  in fo rmat ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MR MOLEFE:    Did  they say in  the  ar t i c l e  where  they go t  

the  in fo rmat ion  f rom? 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have read the  ar t i c le  i f  I  reca l l  

cor rec t l y,  bu t  I  cannot  remember  whether  –  probab ly  I  don ’ t  20 

th ink  they wou ld  say,  they m ight  say  cer ta in  re l iab le  

sources had to ld  them.  

MR MOLEFE:   D id  the  ar t i c le  say who i t  was wr i t ten  by?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sure  i t  shou ld  show,  the  –  I  th ink  

the  lega l  team can jus t  make ar rangements  to  make  a  copy 
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o f  tha t  a r t i c le  ava i lab le  to  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  know abou t  i t ,  the  po in t  tha t  I  was 

t ry ing  to  make is  d id  the  Commiss ion  there fore  ask  the  

person who wro te  the  ar t i c le  where  d id  you get  tha t  

in fo rmat ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  the  Commiss ion  invest iga t i ons are  

ongo ing ,  bu t  the  –  what  I  wanted you to  be  ab le  to  say 

someth ing  about  i f  you  are  ab le  to ,  i s  to  say we  have a  

s i tua t ion  where  i t  seems in  2010 a  newspaper  tha t  i s  

owned by  the  Gupta  fami ly  o r  the i r  en t i t ies  seems to  10 

pred ic t  tha t  you are  go ing  to  be  the  next  Group CEO of  

Transnet  and i t  ac tua l l y  tha t  does happen and then in  2014 

accord ing  to  Mr  Hank Bester  who  gave ev idence here  he  

meets  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa on some issue re la t ing  to  

Transnet ,  bus iness or  cont rac t ,  and Mr  Sa l im Essa wants  

Mr  Bester ’s  company to  work  w i th  h is  company and  

accord ing  to  Mr  Beste r  in  an  a t tempt  to  show tha t  they,  I  

assume Mr  Sa l im Essa and whoever  e lse  he  was ta lk ing  

about ,  a re  power fu l  peop le ,  he  dec ided to  te l l  h im tha t  you 

know we know tha t  the  –  Mr  B r ian  Mole fe  i s  go ing  to  be  the  20 

next  boss o f  Eskom and in  less  than a  year  tha t  does 

happen,  so  you might  say  look I  don ’ t  have a  comment ,  I  

don ’ t  know where  tha t  came f rom,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  i t  i s  fa i r  

to  jus t  say  the re  is  th is ,  do  you  have someth ing  to  say 

about ,  do  you know anyth ing  abou t  i t .  
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MR MOLEFE:    No I  don ’ t  know anyth ing  about  i t ,  I  d id  

hear  about  the  a r t i c le  a t  the  t ime,  in  fac t  I  was out  o f  the 

count ry  and ja ,  and somebody jus t  came to  me and sa id  

hey have you seen what  i s  on  soc ia l  med ia ,  and then I  sa id 

I  don ’ t  know what  th is  i s  a l l  about  and i t  was the  end o f  the  

mat te r  as  fa r  as  I  am concerned.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Mole fe  le t  us  

dea l  w i th  your  secondment  because i t  has  a lso  come up 

here  a  coup le  o f  t imes f rom –  your  secondment  f rom 10 

Transnet  to  Eskom.   Te l l  the  Cha i rperson how d id  tha t  

come about ,  who approaches you,  and what  d id  they  say to  

you?  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson in  regard  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  am g iv ing  you two minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Keep your  m ic  on  Mr  Mole fe ,  ja  jus t  pu t  

i t  on .  

MR MOLEFE:   As  you can see Cha i rperson I  am very  eager  

to  he lp  your  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  d idn ’ t  hear  tha t .  20 

MR MOLEFE:    I  sa id  as  you can  see I  am very  eager  to  

he lp  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laugh ing ]  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:    Chai rperson as  you remember  in  2014/2015  

the  count ry  su f fe red  deb i l i ta t ing  load shedd ing .    I t  was so  
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bad Cha i rperson  tha t  one day I  went  to  a  bank and I  

wanted to  go  i ns ide  the  bank a t  I rene Mal l ,  wh ich  i s  a  smal l  

ma l l  and I  found  the  bank manager,  the  S tandard  Bank 

bank manager,  s tand ing  outs ide  the  bank and he sa id  sor ry  

the  bank is  c losed.    I  had never  imag ined tha t  Sou th  A f r i ca  

cou ld  come to  tha t ,  tha t  on  a  weekday,  I  th ink  i t  was a  

Wednesday . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  assume i t  was  c losed because o f  load 

shedd ing .  

MR MOLEFE:    Load shedd ing ,  i t  was in  the  m idd le  o f  load 10 

shedd ing ,  the  bank was c losed,  a round ten /e leven  in  the  

morn ing  on  a  week day,  the  bank  manager  was s tand ing  

outs ide  the  bank and sa id  the  bank is  c losed and I  was a t  

Transnet ,  we were  t ry ing  to  ramp up the  t ranspor ta t ion  o f  

coa l  to  R ichards  Bay because o f  the  back logs and so  on  

and so  fo r th ,  w i th  e lec t r i c  locomot ives .  

 There  was a  t ime when we were  runn ing  about  36  

t ra ins  on  the  coa l  l ine  to  R ichards Bay,  schedu l ing  them 36 

t ra ins  in  about  24  to  30  hours ,  tha t ’s  a  lo t  o f  t ra ins ,  e lec t r i c  

t ra ins  and i t  takes t ime and p lann ing  to  schedu le  t ra ins  l i ke  20 

tha t  and i t  takes  weeks fo r  us  to  add a  t ra in ,  add a  t ra in ,  

add a  t ra in ,  un t i l  you  ar r i ve  a t  the  po in t  where  you are  

runn ing  about  one t ra in  every  45  minutes  to  R ichards Bay,  

and then there  wou ld  be  load shedd ing  on par t  o f  the  l ine  

and the  who le  sys tems co l lapses and i t  takes th ree  to  four  
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weeks,  maybe even more ,  s ix  weeks to  ge t  the  schedu l ing  

go ing  on aga in .  

 So i t  rea l l y  f rus t ra ted  me on a l l  sor ts  o f  leve l s  and 

then one day du r ing  a  funct ion  a t  I  th ink  a t  the  Por t  o f  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Min i s te r  Brown sa id  i f  we asked you to  go  to  

Transnet  wou ld  you go . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Transnet  o r  Eskom? 

MR MOLEFE:    Sorry  Eskom,  Eskom,  e ish ,  sor ry  

Cha i rperson,  my l i fe  i s  a  . . .  i f  we asked you to  go  to  Eskom 

wou ld  you go.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Who asked you?  

MR MOLEFE:    M in is te r  Brown.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Min is te r  Brown,  Lynne Brown? 

MR MOLEFE:    Lynne Brown yes,  and I  sa id  yes,  and she 

sa id  okay and then a  coup le  o f  days la te r,  o r  maybe a  week 

or  so  and she ca l led  back and sa id  okay we are  ac t iva t ing  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    She ca l led  back  and sa id?  

MR MOLEFE:    We are  ac t iva t ing  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay ja ,  your  move to  Eskom.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes and they sa id  tha t ’s  f ine ,  and then so  I  

was aware  tha t  she was work ing  on  i t ,  so  she wou ld  have 

done the  communica t ions to  the  Board  and so  on .   We 

spoke,  ac tua l l y  be tween me and  her  on  th i s  ma t te r  we 

spoke ve ry  few words.   She asked  and I  agreed,  there  was 
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no  long debate  and so  on  and f rom my s ide  i t  was l i ke  

South  A f r i ca  i s  rea l l y  co l laps ing ,  the  bank is  c losed a t  ten  

o ’c lock  in  the  morn ing  or  a t  e leven o ’c lock  in  the  morn ing  

and I  saw the  devasta t ion  on  the  ra i l  l i ne  and I  thought  

about  what  I  was do ing  a t  Transnet  was impor tan t ,  the  

imp lementa t ion  o f  the  market  demand s t ra tegy bu t  I  fe l t  

hey  Eskom is  more  ser ious,  i f  I  can  he lp  there  I  shou ld  go  

there ,  and they ac t iva ted  i t ,  she  spoke to  the  Boards,  one 

day I  was on my way to  Cape Town and I  remember  i t  was 

a  Fr iday a f te rnoon,  no  Thursday  a f te rnoon.   I  had been 10 

inv i ted  to  speak as  a  guest  a t  a  g raduat ion  ce remony o f  I  

th ink  i t  was the  Techn ikon,  the  Techn ikon in  Cape Town,  

Weste rn  Cape Techn ikon,  I  don ’ t  know what  they ca l l  i t  now 

and I  sa id  –  we l l  she sa id  where  a re  you,  I  sa id  I  am a t  the  

a i rpor t ,  I  am go ing  to  Cape Town.   She says don ’ t  go ,  we  

are  mak ing  the  announcement  tomorrow.   And I  ca l led  Mr  

Caso Qiqwa[? ]  who was the  CEO of  Transpor t  Por t  

Termina ls  and I  asked my PA to  emai l  h im my speech a t  the  

graduat ion  and asked h im to  go  to  Cape Town and  de l i ver  

tha t  speech,  he  was in  Durban and then I  s tayed and she 20 

sa id  tomor row morn ing  a t  ten  o ’c lock  you mus t  be  a t  

Eskom,  on  Fr iday  and then she made the  announcement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We know tha t  she made the  

announcement  I  th ink  on  the  17 t h  o f  Apr i l  2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  even i f  you don ’ t  remember  the  

exact  da te  when she –  tha t  i s  now Min is te r  Brown,  ra ised 

th is  i ssue w i th  you fo r  the  f i r s t  t ime,  how long be fore  the  

17 t h  o f  Apr i l  do  you th ink  i t  was  how much t ime lapsed  

between the  t ime  when she ra i sed  i t  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime w i th  

you and the  end when i t  was announced? 

MR MOLEFE:    P robab ly  a  week  or  a  week and a  ha l f ,  

someth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A week or  a  week and a  ha l f .  

MR MOLEFE:    A week and a  ha l f  ja ,  s ince  she ra ised i t  10 

w i th  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    From what  you say i t  looks  l i ke  she was 

the  f i rs t  person to  ment ion  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  you mov ing  to  

Eskom.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  and she managed the  process o f  

communica t ing  to  the  Boards,  tha t  the  Boards had taken  

the i r  p roper  dec i s ions and th is  was  done and I  th ink  in  one 

–  e i the r  one o r  bo th  o f  them i t  was an ex poste  approva l  

wh ich  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  bu t  the  –  and then there  was a  proper  

agreement  tha t  was s igned and I  went  to  Eskom.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  your  –  wou ld  i t  be  fa i r  to  say your  

unders tand ing  was tha t  she managed the  who le  p rocess o f  

your  move f rom Transnet  to  Eskom.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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MR MOLEFE:    And Cha i rperson she was the  shareho lder  

o f  bo th  compan ies ,  representa t i ve  shareho lde r,  100% 

shareho ld ing  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and  they be long  to  the  

government ,  so  i f  government  sa id  look  you must  move 

f rom here  to  there  to  he lp  there  a t  the  t ime she sa id  you  

w i l l  come back to  Transnet ,  i t ’s  jus t  an  appo in t  jus t  to  –  

there  are  cer ta in  th ings tha t  I  don ’ t  unders tand a t  Eskom.   

For  example  she says they are  te l l ing  me tha t  they cannot  

pay sa la r i es  i n  two months ,  Mats ie ts i  Mohko lo  repeated i t  

yes terday tha t  a t  tha t  t ime they were  no t  go ing  to  be  ab le  10 

to  pay sa la r ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  thank you.   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Mr  Mole fe  du r ing  tha t  t ime  

d id  you know or  even pr io r  to  tha t  t ime d id  you know Dr  

Ngubane?  

MR MOLEFE:     No I  d id  no t  know Dr  Ngubane befo re  I  go t  

to  Eskom,  I  know about  h im,  in  fac t  he  was the  ambassador  

to  Japan and . . . [ in te rvenes]     

ADV SELEKA SC:    Face the  Cha i rperson.  

MR MOLEFE:    Sor ry.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Face to  the  Cha i rperson.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes ,  sor ry  Cha i rperson.    He was the  

ambassador  to  Japan and I  th ink  I  am not  sure  i f  my 

memory  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    He was a  cab ine t  m in is te r  a t  some s tage  
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be fore  tha t  as  we l l .  

MR MOLEFE:    He had been a  cab ine t  m in is te r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t  –  speak ing  s imul taneous ly  

and a t  some s tage.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  I  can ’ t  remember  i f  he  was s t i l l  

ambassador  bu t  we went  there  and we d id  a  dea l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  Japan?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  a  Japanese Yen dea l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Whi le  he  was ambassador.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Whi le  he  was,  so  we d id  a  dea l  in  the 

market  fo r  South  A f r i ca ,  South  A f r i ca  i ssued a  Yen bond  

and we went  to  Japan to  se l l  the  bond to  Japanese  

investors .   I  th ink  I  may have been w i th  Ms Maka to ,  she  

was the  head o f  fo re ign  fund ing ,  and wh i le  he  was there ,  

wh i le  we were  there  do ing  the  dea l  as  a  de legat ion  

rep resent ing  the  South  A f r i can government  he  hosted  us .   I  

mean tha t  was the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  I  had ac tua l l y  in te rac ted  

w i th  h im c lose ly  and then fo r  many years  I  never  in te rac ted  

w i th  h im unt i l  Eskom.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  name d id  you use,  the  f i rs t  t ime 

you in te rac ted  w i th  who?  

MR MOLEFE:    D r  Ngubane.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh is  tha t  the  name you used,  I  

thought  you used  a  d i f fe ren t  name.  
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MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  don ’ t  know h is  name . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  

laugh ing ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The reason I  am ask ing  is  because Ms 

Mats ie t s i  Mohko lo  says p r io r  to  the  dec i s ion  be ing  made 

fo r  you to  be  seconded the  Min i s te r,  Min i s te r  Lynne Brown,  

ge ts  ca l led  to  a  meet ing  a t  Eskom wi th  Dr  Ngubane .   A t  the 

t ime he is  an  ac t ing  Cha i rperson o f  Eskom Board .   In  that  

meet ing  when they ar r i ved,  tha t  i s  the  Min i s te r  and Ms 

Mohko lo ,  they f ind  the  Cha i rpe rson o f  Transnet ,  Ms L inda 

Mambaso,  they f ind  Dr  Ngubane,  and Mr  S i themba Khoza  10 

who was a t  the  t ime the  Act ing  CEO.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And accord ing  to  her  impress ion  the  

person who in t roduces the  idea  o f  your  secondment  to  

Eskom is  Dr  Ngubane,  so  tha t  i s  the  reason I  am ask ing  

you d id  you know Dr  Ngubane a t  the  t ime?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  cannot  comment  on  tha t  meet ing  

Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  know anyth ing  about  i t ,  I  wasn ’ t  

there ,  in  fac t  I  was away . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  Mr  Se leka you may have  20 

unders tood her  ev idence l i ke  tha t ,  bu t  I  unders tood  her  –  I  

th ink  I  unders tood he r  to  be  say ing  a t  the  mee t ing  the 

person who ra i sed the  sub jec t  was Dr  Ngubane  wh ich  I  

d idn ’ t  necessar i l y  unders tand to  be  –  to  say there  may not  

have been d i scuss ions p r io r  to  tha t  meet ing  wh ich  he  might  
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have known noth ing  about .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  no  tha t  i s  a  fa i r  assessment  

Cha i r  because I  must  a lso  say in  add i t ion  to  tha t  

Cha i rperson the  same quest ion  was put  to  Dr  Ngubane and  

Dr  Ngubane sa id  th is  was a  fo l low-up meet ing  accord ing  to  

h im,  so  there  was a  meet ing  be fo re  and th is  was a  fo l low 

up meet ing .   Accord ing  to  Dr  Ngubane i t  was the  Min is te r  

who asked h im to  second you,  who suggested tha t  you be 10 

seconded to  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  I  th ink  Dr  Ngubane ’s  ev idence  

seems to  be  cons is ten t  w i th  Mr  Mole fe ’s  ev idence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Correc t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because Mr  Mole fe  says the  f i rs t  person  

who ra ised th is  i ssue w i th  h im o f  mov ing  to  Eskom was  

Min is te r  Brown.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Dr  Ngubane sa id  tha t  the  idea tha t  Mr  

Mole fe  shou ld  be  moved to  Eskom came f rom Min is te r  20 

Brown.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Min is te r  Brown.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . I  th ink  tha t ’s  cons i s ten t  ja .  
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MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  bu t  Cha i rperson I  was re fe r r ing  to  my 

consc iousness fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime I  go t  to  know i t  i s  when the  

Min is te r  l i te ra l l y  ca l l s  me as ide  du r ing  a  funct ion  w i th  many  

peop le  and we speak in  low tones,  and she says wou ld  you  

go to  Eskom.    I t  d idn ’ t  take  th ree  minutes  and tha t  was i t  

so  I  don ’ t  know what  happened before  and a f te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  ja ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No tha t  i s  a l r igh t .    Ja ,  because jus t  

fo r  you r  in fo rmat ion ,  I  am not  –  you may comment  o r  you  

may not  be  ab le  to ,  you see how the  do ts  connect  i t  i s  10 

because the  cent ra l  f igure  –  you ’ re  laugh ing  –  the  cent ra l  

f igure  in  th i s  i s  Mr  Sa l im Essa who as  we have  a l ready 

ind ica ted  to  you the  ev idence o f  Mr  Hank Bester  in  2014  

who says th is  i s  what  Mr  Sa l im Essa sa id ,  we have a l ready 

dec ided tha t  Mr  Mole fe  w i l l  be  the  CEO of  Eskom.   Then 

you have on the  10 t h  o f  March 2015 when Ms Suzanne 

Dan ie ls  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  word [s ]  cu t  o f f ]  Mel rose Arch.   Mr 

Sal im Essa introduces himsel f  as the Minister ’s  advisor  to  

her and that  refers to Minister Lynne Brown.  

 Then you have again the involvement of  Mr Essa 20 

when Mr Tsotsi  does the composi t ion of  the sub-commit tees 

of  the Eskom board.   That  Mr Essa proposes to h im who 

should be on those sub-commit tees and Minister  Lynne 

Brown gives Mr Tsotsi  the same names or  l ist  of  names that  

had been received f rom Mr Sal im Essa.  
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 And Mr Tsotsi  is cal led to the Minister ’s  off ice where 

according to him he f inds the Minister wi th Mr Tony Gupta 

and Mr Sal im Essa and the Minister insists on a part icular 

l ist  for the composi t ion of  the sub-commit tees.  

 So when the Minister then comes to you i t  seems that  

there is more than just  the Minister behind the decision for 

your secondment.   You may want to  comment or you have no 

comment?  I  am just  paint ing the picture to you.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  am tempted to comment.   Chai rperson i f  you 

can observe events some of  them imagined some of  them 10 

real  and you observe them ei ther  in your head or  outs ide 

happening.   And then you decide that  you would l ike to paint  

a picture.   You can paint  any p icture.  

 These thoughts these mythical  thoughts can be 

construed f rom anything.   Related events or  unrelated 

events.   You can take things that  happen – that  happen in a 

part icular way as a resul t  of  coincidence – that  happen in – I  

am tel l ing you that  I  do not  know about these meet ings.   I  do 

not  know Mr Sal im Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   And yet  you take al l  these events that  were 

happening.   Wel l  I  can even ask – I  mean on the day that  Mr 

Bester and Mr Sal im Essa had that  meet ing was i t  ra ining?  

And was the fact  that  i t  was raining part  of  the dots?  Or was 

i t  a fu l l  moon?  Or anyth ing can be connected to anything 
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Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   People who come here and say they are 

connect ing a dot  and then as I  am si t t ing here I  can look at  

the sky and imagine a l ion and actual ly connect  the dots 

between the di fferent  stars – the stars at  night .   You can see 

a l ion i f  you look very careful ly i f  you connect  the dots.  

 So Chairperson I  – in law there was a – I  do not  know 

I  had never studied law.  I  know a lot  of  people who did but  I  

d id not .   But  there is a theory of  causat ion.    What – i f  10 

somebody wakes up in the morning and starts by going to 

the bathroom and comes back and s leeps in the k i tchen what 

was the cause of  that?  Is i t  the fact  that  they woke up and 

went to the bathroom but  because they – so you can connect  

the dots to anything and in fact  th is – th is is a  matter 

actual ly in law that  is  deal t  wi th  qui te extensively  about  the 

theory of  causat ion.    

 You cannot go and f ind al l  sundry events and t ry to  

connect  them and f ind causat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   I  th ink they cal l  i t  the theory of  causat ion.   

Approximate causat ion not  al l  the events that  were 

happening in a restaurant  in Mel rose Arch for a discussion 

that  people had on a rainy Sunday evening and say that  i t  is  

– you know I  even think that  day maybe somebody got  to a 
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t raff ic l ight  and caused an accident .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   You could say that  i t  was because of  that  

discussion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  th ink i t  is  very [00:04:36]  of  the – your  

response that  you were not  in those meet ings.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes I  was not  in those meet ings.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   Let  us leave i t  there Chairperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   I  th ink… 10 

MR MOLEFE:    I  th ink we can ignore the fact  that  I  t r ied to 

venture into the law.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No,  no,  no but  you remember we 

spoke about perspect ives even i f  i t  is the same facts.   Part  

of  th is is  for you to be able to say wel l  I  do not  know about  

th is and that  but  there is a f law in  th is r isk game when you 

t ry to connect  th is  and this and this as I  see i t .   So I  was not  

there but  th is  does not  connect .   So that  perspect ive.   But  i f  

you say look I  do not  th ink that  th is  means anything real ly.   I   

mean that  is -   that  is f ine.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   I  th ink therefore Chai r  my comment to be fai r  

Mr Seleka.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   Is to say that  I  note that  you are talk ing about 

events that  happened; that  I  was not  aware of  most  of  them.  
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They may or may not  be for me a picture.   I  cannot  – have 

not  def in i t ively sa id and I  do not  th ink anyone can say that  

there is a picture that  you draw f rom events that  are 

careful ly selected to paint  the picture.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   No thank you Chai r.   Yes… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  maybe we for the sake of  

completeness we may as wel l  a lso ment ion this and i f  you 

have got  something to say you can use the opportuni ty to  

say i f  you real ly have nothing to say you can – you do not  

have to say anything that  in – according to Mr Mcebesi  10 

Jonas.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja he gave evidence in the commission 

and said he had a meet ing at  the Gupta residence on the 23 

October 2015.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He said Mr Duduzane Zuma was in  that  

meet ing,  Mr Hlongwane was in that  meet ing – Fana 

Hlongwane and he said there was a Gupta brother that  was 

there.   I  th ink in i t ia l ly he said i t  as Mr Ajay Gupta but  I  th ink 20 

later on he said he was not  sure about whether i t  was Mr 

Ajay Gupta or one of  the other brothers.  

MR MOLEFE:   So he does not  know who said i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  what d id emerge through the 

invest igat ion of  the commission I  th ink is that  – and I  th ink 
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Mr Duduzane Zuma accepted is that  Mr Tony Gupta was in  

the house on the day of  that  meet ing.   But  Mr Duduzane 

Zuma and Mr Hlongwane thei r  vers ion is Mr Tony Gupta was 

not  part  of  the meet ing he popped in at  some stage and 

wanted to speak to – to Mr Duduzane Zuma. But  he was not  

part  of  the meet ing.  

 But  Mr Jonas was adamant that  there was a Gupta 

brother  who was having a meet ing wi th him.  He said the two 

namely Duduzane Zuma and Mr Hlongwane were quiet  most  

of  the t ime.  I t  was just  that  Gupta brother and himsel f  were 10 

talk ing.  

 One of  the things that  he said they – the Gupta 

brother said was that :  

1.  Mr Nt lant la Nene was going to be f i red as Minister  of  

Finance because he was not  cooperat ing wi th  them or  

not  working wi th them or something to that  effect  and 

we do know that  about  six weeks later Mr Nene was 

f i red as Min ister o f  Finance.  

And then he according to Mr Jonas he wanted him to 

agree to take the job of  be ing Min is ter of  Finance of  offered 20 

him some money.  

 But  one of  the th ings that  he says the Gupta brother  

who he says was talk ing to h im that  he said was that  there 

were certain people that  they were working wi th and among 

those he ment ioned Ms Lynne Brown and he ment ioned you.   
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 And according to  Mr Jonas the Gupta brother who 

was there said among other th ings that  Mr Br ian Molefe’s or  

Br ian Molefe’s career is wel l  taken care of .   I  am using my 

own words something to that  effect .  

 So there is – there is that  as wel l .   You might  say,  

look  

1.  I  was not  in that  meet ing.   I  do not  know what they 

were talk ing about.   I  do not  have any comment.   Or  I  

do have some comment.    

But  I  just  want to make sure that  you are aware that  10 

there is th is evidence that  Mr Jonas gave and i f  i t  is  

something that  you had not  looked at  and you would rather  

deal  wi th i t  later when you come back that  is f ine as wel l .  

 But  i f  you say look I  have no comments about  i t  that  

is also f ine.  

MR MOLEFE:   Chairperson the evidence of  Mr Jonas he 

says he was at  that  house I  th ink I  remember that  he said 

somebody was in the passage – he met in the passage.  He 

does not  know who that  person is.   Even as you are 

descr ib ing now he thought i t  was so and so but  then maybe i t  20 

could have been so and so as wel l .   And that  person who he 

does not  know said we are taking care of  Mr Br ian Molefe’s  

career.  

 Now the weight  o f  that  ev idence is  very – is l ight  i t  

cannot  be heavy – i t  cannot have a lot  of  –  even though this 
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is an inqui ry and this inqui ry can accept  hearsay because 

that  is what i t  is i t  is hearsay.  

 Even though i t  is an inqui ry that  can accept  hearsay 

but  the qual i ty of  that  hearsay is actual ly very bad.   Because 

he does not  know who he heard i t  f rom in  the f i rs t  p lace.   

And he says that  he – I  th ink he even said that  that  person 

was not  part  of  the meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  he said the Gupta brother was part  of  

the meet ing.  

MR MOLEFE:   Now the person who said that  – who talked 10 

about me was not  part  of  the meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.  

MR MOLEFE:   He sa id the person who talked about me was 

not  part  of  the meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no.   The person that  Mr Jonas said 

said these things about you was the Gupta brother  that  he 

said he was having a meet ing wi th.  

MR MOLEFE:   Oh I  thought he said i t  was somebody who 

was passing on the passage.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   Okay but  I  – I  cannot comment on i t .   I  deny 

that  there is any Gupta person was responsible for my 

career.   I  was responsible for my career and – and that  

especial ly because that  hearsay evidence is not  even 

corroborated by anyone.  Nobody e lse overheard what they 
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were saying or came here to say that  we are taking care of  

Mr Molefe ’s career.  

 I  do not  know whether i t  happened or that  Mr Jonas 

is remembering i t  wrong or i t  is just  a f igment  of  his 

imaginat ion or  that  he cannot dist inguish i t  f rom something 

that  he dreamt to something that  real ly happened.  

 I  do not  know but  I  can tel l  you now as under oath as  

evidence that  there was no Gupta brother that  took care of  

my career.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  do not  want to – to say took care 10 

but  – of  your career but  I  th ink in my recol lect ion of  Mr 

Jonas’ evidence is that  i t  was something l ike your career is 

taken care of .   Maybe not  necessar i ly by them but  your  

career is – you wi l l  be f ine in terms of  career.  

 But  let  us complete the whole thing because we have 

now talked about i t .   I  mean I  do not  know what f inding I  wi l l  

make about Mr Jonas’ evidence and Mr Duduzane’s evidence 

and Mr Hlongwane’s evidence about that  meet ing.   What I  

wi l l  u l t imately f ind to be the case.  

 But  i f  I  were to f ind that  indeed Mr Jonas was told 20 

these things by a Gupta brother in  that  meet ing and he was 

made the offer that  he said he was made that  i f  he agreed to 

be Minister of  Finance and work wi th them bla,  bla,  b la i t  

may wel l  be that  the – and the fact  that  that  Gupta brother  

seems to have known in October al ready that  Minister Nene 
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was going to f i red as Minister of  Finance.    

 I t  may wel l  be that  i t  would be reasonable to say i t  

looks l ike the Gupta brothers were looking to get  a Minister  

of  Finance for the – for the government who would meet wi th 

their  approval .  

 And I  have heard evidence about Mr Van Rooyen who 

was appointed as Mr Nene’s successor.   He has g iven 

evidence here as wel l .   He indicated the number of  

interact ions that  he had wi th  I  th ink one or  other  of  the 

Gupta brothers between October and December before he 10 

was appointed and there has been evidence about the 

advisors that  he appointed that  is Mr Van Rooyen.  

 And there is  the invest igat ion of  the commission led i t  

to ask some of  the people who were off ic ia ls of  the ANC in 

March 2017 I  th ink that  is when Mr Gordhan was f i red as 

Minister of  Finance.  

MR MOLEFE:   Hm. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Asked what reasons Mr Zuma may have 

told them why he was f i r ing Mr Gordhan and they f i led 

aff idavi ts Mr Mantashe,  Dr Zwel i  Mkize was Treasurer 20 

General  at  the t ime.   Mr Mantashe was SG and Ms Jessie 

Duarte they f i led aff idavi ts which are wi thin the commission 

and i f  you have not  been given copies you should be given of  

copies.  

 One of  the things they say is that  yes Mr Zuma did 
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d iscuss or te l l  them his p lan to f i re or leave out  of  cabinet  Mr 

Gordhan and they say he to ld them that  he wanted to replace 

Mr Gordhan as Minister of  Finance wi th you.   

 And they say in those aff idavi ts the off ic ia ls of  the 

ANC al l  re jected that  idea.   And we do know of  course that 

the person who are – who replaced Mr Gordhan as Minister 

of  Finance was then Mr Gigaba.  

 And in the meant ime I  th ink in February 2017 i f  I  am 

not  mistaken you became a member of  Parl iament Nat ional  

Assembly for  a  few months.   I  th ink in May you res igned and 10 

went back to Eskom. 

MR MOLEFE:   Hm. 

CHAIRPERSON:   So you might  be able to say,  look I  have no 

comment rea l ly on these things but  I  ment ion them and i f  you 

have not  been given the aff idavi ts  that  I  am talk ing about 

arrangements should be made for you to have been – to be 

given and i f  you want to say let  me read the aff idavi ts f i rst  

and deal  wi th th is issue later when I  come back that  is 

acceptable as wel l .  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja but  Chairperson I  feel  i t  is a bi t  unfai r  that  20 

people come here and say that  we were gossiping about Mr 

Molefe in his absence.   And that  I  was at  the house.   I  do not  

know about the – the fact  Mr Jonas is making whether  i t  took 

place R600 bi l l ion and so on.   I  am not  comment ing about  

that .  
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 The fact  that  they talked about me at  the meet ing that  

I  was not  there and I  am not  aware of .   And i t  may have been 

Mr Mkize and a discussion at  Luthul i  House about me i t  was 

gossiping.   Because I  was not  there.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  do not  th ink i t  is fa i r  to say i t  was 

gossiping because this was the President  of  the country Mr 

Zuma and President  of  the ANC talking to his  – to  the top 

leadership of  the ANC the Top 5 – Top 6 to say this is what I  

am planning to do.   And I  guess he was conf ront ing them. 

MR MOLEFE:   So they were – they were talk ing about me.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   And I  was not  there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  do not  th ink i t  is  fa i r  to say they were 

gossiping.  

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  I  do not  know what is the def in i t ion of  

gossip but  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sure you talk about  a lot  o f  other 

people when they are not  there but  you would not  say you 

were gossiping al l  the t ime.  

MR MOLEFE:   But  that  is what gossip is.   I  do not  know but  20 

… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Especial ly… 

MR MOLEFE:   But  let  us not  use the gossip then but  they 

were talk ing about me and I  was not  there and I  was not  

aware of  thei r  d iscussion.  
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 I  do not  know how that  should ref lect  on me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no that  – there is a… 

MR MOLEFE:   Or how I  should take accountabi l i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no the idea.  

MR MOLEFE:   For  those discussions that  took place in my 

absence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No as I  say 

MR MOLEFE:   Or  how I  should then now in a commission of  

the inqui ry explain mysel f  about  d iscussion that  took place in 

my absence about  me.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you see as I  say you know you might  

say,  look I  know nothing about i t  and I  have no comment 

about i t .   Or you might  have some comment.   But  a possible 

scenario might  be that  you might  say I  do not  know.  You 

might  say,  wel l  I  am not  surpr ised that  Mr Zuma ment ioned to 

the off ic ia ls of  the ANC that  he was – he wanted to – they 

wanted me to rep lace Mr Gordhan because he had actual ly 

contacted me and asked me whether I  would be prepared 

and I  said I  would be prepared so I  am not  surpr ised.  

 But  you might  say I  am surpr ised because nobody 20 

ever ta lked about  that  to me.  So the idea is just  to  enable 

you to say what you might  know about these th ings.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja I  know nothing about i t  Chai rperson and I  

wi l l  not  comment on i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight  thank you.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Yes I  – one should 

emphasise that  Mr Molefe there is a process of  invest igat ion 

in gather ing informat ion.   Ul t imately the law makes a 

decision based on the evidence presented i f  i t  is 

uncont roverted.    

 But  the decision is not  made based on reading the 

stars or making imaginat ions.   So we are in the process and 

the end wi l l  be based on the evidence.  

 Now in addi t ion to  the secondment issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr Seleka I  just  real ised we have 10 

gone over one o’c lock.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh we have gone.  Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink let  us take the lunch adjournment.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We are at  nine minutes past  one we wi l l  

resume at  ten past  two.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 20 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    We are supposed to cont inue but  we are 

unable to cont inue because we have received news that  

somebody that  works closely wi th  me has tested posi t ive 

wi th Covid-19.    
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 I t  seems that  in  those ci rcumstances,  because I  am 

requi red to isolate mysel f ,  that  we cannot proceed in th is  

form.  I  took the t rouble dur ing lunch to ask Mr Seleka to 

share the informat ion wi th Mr Masuku and an oral  consent  – 

I  understand that  there is an agreement that  that  is what  

should happen.  Namely,  we should adjourn.   Is that  

conf i rmed? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is conf i rmed Chai rperson.   I  d id 

convey the message to my . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  to Mr Masuku.   You conf i rm?  Ja.    10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   I t  is unfor tunate but  i t  is the real i ty 

that  we are faced wi th now and we have to f ind ways of  how 

bet ter to handle the si tuat ion because i f  each t ime somebody 

that  has been in  close contact  wi th me tests posi t ive,  the 

hearings of  the Commission have got  to be disrupted,  then i t  

could pose qui te a problem for the Commission’s work and 

us f in ish ing in the t ime within which we must f in ish.  

 So I  th ink that ,  f rom my side,  I  th ink we should explore 

the possib i l i ty that  i f  a l l  concerned are avai lable somet ime 20 

next  week on one of  the days,  we could explore the 

possibi l i ty of  having the hear ing via  a video l ink or v ia Zoom 

from – and I  would be si t t ing in my place of  isolat ion.   So we 

must explore that  and see whether i t  is possible.  

 Obviously,  because next  week was not  planned, that  wi l l  
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only happen i f  Mr Molefe is  avai lable,  his legal  team is  

avai lab le.   I  am saying next  week,  we could f ind a day where 

we could do that ,  because the Commission has been 

informed by the at torneys represent ing the former President ,  

Mr Zuma, that  he wi l l  not  be appear ing before the 

Commission next  week.  

 He says that  should not  in any way be seen as 

disrespect  on his  part  for any legal  process.   I t  seems that  

he says i t  is because he bel ieves the rev iew appl icat ion that  

he has lodged should be f inal ised f i rst .  10 

 And that  also,  there is the matter that  is in the 

Const i tut ional  Court  which has not  been f inal ised.   I  am not  

t ry ing to exhaust  every reason that  he gives,  but  I  th ink i t  is  

fa i r  to give,  at  least  ment ion that  those are the main reasons 

he gives through his lawyers.  

 So we know that  he is not  going to be here next  week.   

So i t  would be good i f  there is a  way of  using i t ,  at  least  

some of  the days.    

 So I  do not  know whether Mr Seleka you had any chance 

to speak to Mr Masuku,  but  i f  you have not ,  maybe a 20 

discussion can be had af ter to see what is possible and what 

is  not  possible about  somet ime next  week in relat ion to 

cont inuing wi th Mr Molefe ’s evidence but  v ia Zoom or  

something.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   We did have a chance to speak 
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about  that  Chai r.   We – I  know my learned f r iend was 

expressing,  what,  some advice on that ,  I  would say.   And 

maybe he could be given an opportuni ty.   Is that  r ight?  To 

address the Chai rperson.    

ADV MASUKU SC :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    He is f ine but  he thinks we should 

consider some factors . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . . that  might  require us to  sel f - isolate 

and. . .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   No,  no,  no.   That  is f ine.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is f ine.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The idea is that  we should al l  ta lk  about  i t  

and see whether . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .we al l  th ink i t  is something that  can or  

should be done . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .or not .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You know.  There might  be something that  

one is over looking.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is just  that  one,  i t  is t ry ing to make sure 

that  there is as l i t t le disrupt ion to the hearings as possible.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    As possible.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Given the t ime constraint  – l imi ted t ime 

avai lab le.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  obviously,  that  assumes that  one is in  

isolat ion but  is not  feel ing unwel l .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  assumes that  one is okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is one of  the things.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And. . .   Ja.   Maybe Mr Masuku wishes to  10 

say something? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   I  am thinking Mr Masuku you 

must  be saying:   I  may as wel l  use this one that  they wanted 

me to use ear l ier.   [ laughs]    

ADV MASUKU SC :    Not  that  one.   I  must  just  accept  that . . .   

I  mean, the – we have to fo l low the Covid protocol  once you 

were exposed to someone with Covid.   And one – you are 

qui te  correct  that  you now need to go and isolate.   But  i t  is  

not  just  you who must isolate.   I t  is  your staff .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   No,  no,  no.   That  is t rue.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    I t  is everybody that  is.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Carry your bags.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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ADV MASUKU SC :    Carry your books.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    And everybody else.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    And i t  seems to me that  we should not  

real ly be in a rush to some hearing tomorrow . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    . . .or next  week wi thout  knowing exact ly  

what your state of . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  10 

ADV MASUKU SC :    What the state of  the si tuat ion looks 

l ike.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    I  would propose that  maybe in about  

f ive days when the fog clears . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    . . .and you st i l l  feel  okay . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    . . . then you can wri te to everybody and 

say we can reconvene.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    And we wi l l  make sure that  Mr Molefe is  

avai lab le to do that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    We prefer being physical ly present .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  okay.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    And of  course,  th is place has to be 

fumigated as wel l  because . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   No,  no,  no.   That  wi l l  be done,  ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja,  ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    So i t  is  qui te an inconvenience 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    . . . to be exposed to this kind of  th ing.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    But  i t  is qui te v igorous.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   No,  no.   I t  is.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    So I  would suggest  that  we do not  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Do not  f ix anyth ing so far at  th is stage.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    And in respect  of  the other matter you 

ment ioned,  the let ter,  the love let ter  you received.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Perhaps that  a lso resolves some of  the 

di ff icul t ies we would have faced.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

ADV MASUKU SC :    [ laughs]   I  just  thought I  would ment ion 
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that  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  when I  saw the let ter,  I  wanted to 

say to you – I  wanted to say,  you know – you do not  have to 

take the f i f th amendment.   [ laughs]    

ADV MASUKU SC :    Yes.   [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

ADV MASUKU SC :    No,  that  is just .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  that  is f ine.   So I  th ink that  is a fa i r  –  

those are fai r  po ints.   We wi l l  adjourn.   And i f  we end up 

being able to use some of  – somet ime next  week,  good.   But  10 

i f  we end up not  being able because of  whatever,  i t  is f ine.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    As we go along,  we are learning in terms 

of  how to best  handle the si tuat ion.   And maybe, i f  and when 

i t  happens next  t ime,  I  hope i t  never  happens,  but  i f  i t  does 

happen, we might  be bet ter prepared in terms of  some of  the 

things that  can be done.  I  am sorry that  we cannot cont inue 

but  i t  is one of  those th ings that  one has no control  over.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.   Okay.   No,  thank you.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    We – f rom the Eskom work st ream, we 

were going to have two evening sessions.   So those 

sessions wi l l  a lso be impacted.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ms Goodson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And Ms Naidoo.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.   The one that  we arranged for 

Tuesday.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Tuesday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  that  wi l l  have to be cancel led for now.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the one that  was this evening 10 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    We were going to explore in regard to  

Ms Naidoo,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja,  ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   We wi l l  ta lk ear ly next  week 

and see.   Maybe Tuesday and see how things look.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  to ld mister. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  to ld Mr Masuku that  his at torneys wrote 

the let ter premature ly Chai r.   So. . .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]   They would have taken 

advantage.   [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

ADV SELEKA SC :    They take thei r  hand too soon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   No.   Thank you very much 

Mr Masuku.  

ADV MASUKU SC :    We can say,  i t  is div ine providence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

ADV MASUKU SC :    There is a . . . [ indist inct ]  [ laughs]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Okay no that  is r ight .   Mr Molefe,  

I  am sorry that  we cannot proceed but  obviously you 

understand the si tuat ion.  

MR MOLEFE :    No,  I  do understand Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.   Arrangements wi l l  be made for 

the Commission to cont inue wi th your evidence as soon as 

possible.   Ja.   Okay.   Thank you very much.   

 Then I  have announced that  for next  week Mr Zuma wi l l  

not  be appearing before the Commission in terms of  the 

let ter that  the Commission has received f rom his at torneys.    20 

 But  the week af ter next .   I f  one is able to work and then 

one is f ine,  i t  wi l l  be – we wi l l  hear evidence relat ing to state 

securi ty.   That  is the week af ter next  week.   Alr ight .   thank 

you very much.  We wi l l  then adjourn for the day.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS SINE DIE 
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